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China Lesso Group Holdings Limited is a leading large-scale
industrial group, making building materials and interior decoration
products in mainland China. It is listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock name: China Lesso,
stock code: 2128). China Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of
the Hang Seng Composite Index — MidCap and has been included in
the scheme of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect and is tradable under Hong Kong Stock
Link. The Group provides over 10,000 kinds of quality products,
including plastic pipes and pipe fittings, sanitary ware products,
integrated kitchens, systems of doors and windows, decorative
plates, fire-fighting equipment, and sanitary materials, etc. They are
widely applied to such fields as interior decoration, water supply,
drainage, power supply and telecommunications, gas transmission,
agriculture, floor heating and fire services. The Group is positioned
as one of the manufacturers who offer the most comprehensive
range of building materials and interior decoration products.

The Group has 22 advanced production bases in 16 regions, namely
Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejian,
Henan, Hebei, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Hainan, Yunnan
and Shandong. The Group has established a nationwide sales
network and has also developed long-term strategic partnerships
with 2,146 independent and exclusive first-tier distributors to
provide quality and comprehensive products as well as professional
services for customers. The Group also initiated an e-commerce
venture, its proprietary Lesso Mall in March 2015, which is a
dedicated e-commerce platform for hardware, electrical equipment
and building materials.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

Change
2016 2015 #g
For the year ended 31 December #HZE12831HLLEE
(RMB’000) (ARYF )
Revenue WA 17,221,052 15,264,401 12.8%
Gross profit EF 4,581,778 3,937,671 16.4%
Finance costs & R AR 107,061 87,323 22.6%
EBITDA M ERITEm AT 3,125,219 2,653,109 17.8%
Profit before tax i % A 2,424,792 2,064,671 17.4%
Profit for the year F N A 1,913,704 1,618,450 18.2%
Profit attributable to owners RARHER A
of the Company FE(R %A 1,922,027 1,621,117 18.6%
At 31 December (RMB’000) R12A31B(AR%F )
Total assets BERBT 22,195,286 16,649,123 33.3%
Cash and bank deposits Be RRITER 3,885,683 3,893,544 (0.2)%
Total debts® B EERe 4,694,561 3,240,740 44.9%
Net debt/(cash)® &5,/ (3RE)F5E0 808,878 (652,804) (223.9)%
Total equity gk 11,537,672 9,865,452 17.0%
Share information (RMB) BHER(ARE)
Basic earnings per share® AR E AR B F) 0.62 0.52 19.2%
Diluted earnings per share'® EFRREE AT 0.62 0.52 19.2%
Proposed final dividend per share #tx &R BN S
(HK cents) (B 15 13 15.4%
Equity attributable to owners BRAQGHE A
of the Company per share FE(E = 3.62 3.14 15.3%
Financial ratios Bt &
Gearing Ratio (%) BEEBEE(%) 28.9 24.7
Net debt to equity” (%) B F R e L O (%) 7.0 N/A
Interest cover® (times) R EBF R e (fF) 29.19 30.38
Note: FfsE -
a. Represented total borrowings. a. EfE AR -
b. Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. b. IEEBBERIR S MIRITFR °

c. Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  c. RARBREARBERF 25 EF N RE M BHRE

Company are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements. MIEETT ©
d. Represented net debt divided by total equity. d. BRI F MR AR 2 485 -
e. Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. e. R BT AT R AR AR BB -
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A FMBEHRE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS ES AR®TT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
REVENUE PN 17,221,052 15,264,401 14,822,772 13,070,547 10,891,363
GROSS PROFIT EX ] 4,581,778 3,937,571 3,800,734 3,265,568 2,649,308
EXPENSES* B¢ (2,188,759)  (1,906,605) (1,837,384) (1,502,919) (1,136,887
FINANCE COSTS BERA (107,061) (87,323) (233,071) (151,003) (146,231)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRELATER 2,424,792 2,064,671 1,846,793 1,767,511 1,482,279
Income tax expense FEREY (511,088) (446,221) (306,435) (329,895) (251,008)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 1,913,704 1,618,450 1,540,358 1,437,616 1,231,271
Profit attributable to: PAT (& F -
Owners of the Company AREEBA 1,922,027 1,621,117 1,554,024 1,449,261 1,238,322
Non-controlling interests IR (8,323) (2,667) (13,666) (11,645) (7,051)
1,913,704 1,618,450 1,540,358 1,437,616 1,231,271
At 31 December
M2A318
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FINANCIAL POSITION BIHMIR AR®T AREFTL AREFTT ARETL ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE 12,136,602 8,416,831 7,204,696 5,899,084 4,669,883
Current assets RENAE 10,058,684 8,232,292 7,314,832 6,398,623 5,112,903
Total assets BEES 22,195,286 16,649,123 14,519,528 12,297,707 9,782,786
LIABILITIES =X
Non-current liabilities EEE=R 935,722 2,406,123 2,159,959 1,743,944 1,715,992
Current liabilities mEaE 9,721,892 4,377,548 3,809,846 3,297,820 2,038,876
Total liabilities BEAE 10,657,614 6,783,671 5,969,805 5,041,764 3,754,868
NET CURRENT ASSETS TBEEFE 336,792 3,854,744 3,504,986 3,100,803 3,074,027
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners ARAEBA
of the Company [E{h R 11,231,509 9,770,885 8,545,459 7,239,738 6,010,033
Non-controlling interests FEEIER 306,163 94,567 4,264 16,205 17,885
Total equity DB 11,537,672 9,865,452 8,549,723 7,255,943 6,027,918

#

Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative

expenses and other expenses.

#
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETREES

In 2016, China's gross domestic product growth rate decelerated
t0 6.7%. The economic slowdown weighed on people from
different walks of life. In 2016, the Chinese government
started its 13th Five-year Plan with the policy of stimulating
the economy with investment in national infrastructure
projects. During the year, the Chinese government continued
to press on with the plan of “Sponge City” and “Action Plan
for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution” for better
water management to ensure the safety of water supply and
reduce water pollution. Meanwhile, the Chinese government
accelerated shantytown renovation and redevelopment of
dilapidated housing. Such domestic projects would definitely
boost the demand for plastic pipes and pipe fittings.
Being a sizeable industrial group producing building materials and
interior decoration products, China Lesso has taken advantage
of its economies of scale and capitalised on the state policies
and construction programmes. As a result, the Group achieved
remarkable results for the year.

During the year, the Group achieved a steady increase in terms of
sales revenue, market expansion and key performance indicators
despite the mounting downward pressure on China’s economy. The
Group's revenue increased by 12.8% to RMB17,221 million in 2016
from RMB15,264 million in 2015. Gross profit rose by 16.4% to
RMB4,582 million, and profit attributable to owners of the Company
grew by 18.6% to RMB1,922 million. The Board proposed a final
dividend of HK15 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2016.

During the year, the Group continued to solidify its business
presence in Southern China, where it derived most of its revenue,
and proactively enhanced its market penetration in other regions
of the country. Meanwhile, the Group has been pressing on with
its plan to accelerate the automation and scale up its production
at its production bases to improve overall production efficiency.
The newly established production base in Shandong commenced
operation in the first half of 2016 and upgraded its existing
production facilities so that the Group's total production capacity
has been further enhanced.

In the meantime, China Lesso further developed the business
of building materials and interior decoration products. During
the year, the gradual recovery of domestic property market in
mainland China and the central government’s urbanisation policy
stimulated the demand for building materials and interior decoration
products. To capture the opportunity, the Group diversified into
new product lines. The synergy between such new businesses and
the Group's businesses of existing product lines boosted the sales
revenue effectively. To capitalise on the Chinese government's
environmental protection initiatives, the Group adopted a strategic
plan to enter the environmental protection business through
acquisitions and cooperation with environmental protection service
providers.
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In addition, the Group continued to develop the business of Lesso
Mall, a diversified and dedicated e-commerce platform which
featured an online-to-offline business model. During the year, the
Group refined its strategy for operating Lesso Mall and established
strategic partnerships with local distributors and business partners.
Meanwhile, the Group has also set up chain stores in the country to
expand its domestic sales network. The Group believes that Lesso
Mall will evolve into a major growth driver in the future.

In the face of the world’s challenging business environment in
2016, the Group was able to achieve steady growth in revenue,
meeting the market's expectations. The achievement was
attributable to the Group's sustainable business development and
progressive expansion of its product lines. By adopting strategic
moves in both its existing and new businesses, the Group
successfully expanded the scope of its business in both domestic
and overseas markets, and consolidated its brand image and
reputation. As a result, the Group met the targets for growth in
revenue and profit during the year.

In 2017, China’s business environment is expected to be
complicated and plagued by numerous uncertainties. In order
to adapt to the frequent changes in the market, the Group will
proactively explore the possibility of diversifying its business
further so as to fully capitalise on the government initiatives that
can benefit the industry. The Group is determined to expand its
production capacity by upgrading its existing production bases
in order to enhance its overall efficiency and facility utilisation
rate. It will also try to raise efficiency through automation at its
production bases. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to upgrade
its information system and foster the development of Lesso Mall
so that it can extend its footprint in both domestic and overseas
markets.

China Lesso celebrated the 30th anniversary of its establishment
in 2016, and | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
management and all the staff members for their commitment and
dedication to the Group. The Group will continue to fulfill its mission
of “improving urban quality of life” by providing the market with
innovative and high quality household building products. We will
capitalise on China’'s economic reform and rising consumption
demand to drive the Group's business development for the
long-term. This will enable us to achieve better results and create
greater value for customers, investors and shareholders. China
Lesso is determined to scale new heights in the next 30 years!

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 6 March 2017
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 54, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the Group's overall strategic planning and business management.
Mr. Wong has approximately 20 years of experience in plastic pipe
operations and management. He served as the chairman in Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and was
awarded “QOutstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde
People's Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been
a vice president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber
of Commerce since 2006. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the
founder of a trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi
Development and New Fortune, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 44, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr.
Zuo has approximately 17 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in operation management since joining the Group.
Mr. Zuo won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the
Plastic Industry in the PRC"” by China Plastics Processing Industry
Association in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 50, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies in the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 20
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 50, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management
of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 20 years of experience
in the plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999.
Mr. Lai joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 51, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for the China's sales of the Group and has approximately 23
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined
the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan
City Dongijian Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January
1999 and served as a manager in the production department of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 49, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the quality control of
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 27 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December
1999 and has held various positions in production management and
engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology department
at Guangdong Province Zhaoqing Gaojiang Plastic Products Co.,
Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September
1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the
production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from September
1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy secretary
general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor degree in polymer chemical from South China University
of Technology in July 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERERERABEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 41, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group.
Dr. Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development
and overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 14
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the
Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research and
development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Over the
years, Dr. Lin has won various awards including “National May First
Labor Medal” by All China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr.
Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics
from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 41, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible
for the overall management of the factories and production facilities
of the Group and has approximately 20 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999
and has held various positions in production management since
joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as
a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials
Factory from 1996 until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of
the plastic production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
June 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme
of marketing from Hubei University of Technology from September
2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 45, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies in the Group. Mr. Luo
has approximately 22 years of experience in accounting and
worked at Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March
1996, Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability
from April 1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo
worked for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co.,
Limited as a certified public accountant from January 2008 to April
2016. Mr. Luo is a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Luo had been an independent director of
Winowner Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600681), which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015.
Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor degree in economics from Guangdong
University of Business Studies in June 1993.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin has approximately
22 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a part-
time lawyer at various PRC law firms between 1995 and 2001.
Since 2001, Mr. Lin had been practising as a lawyer at Guangdong
Everwin Law Office and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr.
Lin was an arbitrator of the Guangzhou City Arbitration Commission
in 2003.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao
is Professor of Economics and Strategy in the Faculty of Business
and Economics and the director of the Institute for China and Global
Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao received
his B.Sc. in management science from Fudan University in 1986,
and PhD in economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao
is currently an independent non-executive director of Huadian
Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which is
listed on The Stock Exchange. Dr. Tao is senior fellow at Tsinghua
University's National Centre of Economic Research, senior fellow at
Tsinghua University's Center for China in the World Economy, and
special-term professor at Fudan University School of Management.
He is also co-director of the Asia Competitiveness Program of Hong
Kong Institute of Economics and Business Strategy.

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
Mr. Fung is currently practising as a sole proprietor in the name
of P C Fung & Company, a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
Fung is a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Fung obtained a master degree in arts from Antioch University,
US in March 1987. Mr. Fung is currently an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 15), which is listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department’s Users’ Committee.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERERERASER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of
the High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and
a bachelor degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in
laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2012.
Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor degree in arts with major in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Cheung has over 18 years of experience in financial management
and financial services. Mr. Cheung is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Feiyu Technology International
Company Ltd. (stock code: 1022), which listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheung was employed at the audit department of
Ernst & Young, an international accounting firm, from 2000 to 2004.
Mr. Cheung had been a vice president or director at the respective
investment banking division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific)
Limited, UBS AG and J.P. Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
from 2004 to 2011. From 2011 to 2012, Mr. Cheung was a vice
president of a company which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan
has been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then pursued
further studies in the EMBA CEO training program of Sun Yat-sen
University and the business management CEO training program
of Tsinghua University. She worked as a chairman of the materials
committee of Guangzhou Architecture & Decoration Association
from February 1998 to October 2006. As of the date herein, Ms. Lan
has accumulated over 19 years of experience with respect to the
administration of social organisations and the industry of construction
and decoration materials.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 35, is a chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group's overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this,
he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-
branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Foshan Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu
completed a diploma in finance from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at
Guangdong University of Business Studies from March 2007 to
January 2010. As well as obtaining a master degree in engineering
from Chongging University upon the completion of courses for
the master degree in software engineering (specialised in financial
informatisation) in June 2014. He is an associate member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 39, is a company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group
in June 2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants
from March 2000 to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers
from November 2004 to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from November 2007 to September 2009. The latter
two firms are amongst the biggest international accounting firms.
Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor degree in Commerce from
Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and obtained a
master degree in business administration from University of South
Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of the CPA
Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices and business ethics of the
Group. The Board believes in good corporate governance practices
and business ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable
development, establishing investors’ confidence in the Company
and safeguarding and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices
of the Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations
of the Shareholders for continual improvement, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment of pursuing excellent corporate governance. In
the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Code during the year, except
that one of the independent non-executive directors was unable
to attend the annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company
held on 13 May 2016 (as provided for the Code A.6.7) due to other
business engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to
other specific senior management of the Company. The directors’
and chief executive's interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
page 54.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-
executive directors.

1 2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

TEERER

TEBE -ERNRFAEESKFOEEER
FRMEEER EFSMHE RUNEXER
ERLERER RERUREER BEUREA
FH AR B RS DA R AR AR I I R A 25 H 8
@g o

RIBRREIMEKFHEEERTER  EF8 T
BRI ARARNERERFHR  WESIRRYE

HrENHE  ETEBRENEERT LAE
BITEHEREVEEE N ARE - EZRR

B—R2BVIERITEEREMERNGERE LD
BARRNTIN2016F5 4138 BT ERAF A E

(FﬁxiiﬁﬁﬁAJ)(&E” AIEAB.7IHRMMREE)
Sh - FERARR ST RI R & B B 2 A ST R MR
37 o

ESETRFXZZEETA

ARRERMNRETAMERAR A ESETES
R FH c RAESHTERNK  FIEESE
RRERFA—BEETRETUMMHZA TR
% FESTATFEARARBAEMITE 2 SRE
BABR - EFRITBAHERARR REHREHE
BBy - R R EEEA RS X B N FE4
HENEZRRETHE -

Exg

EEgAX

SEXefRA+ARESEN  BRARUTE
B —EBFNTEE URREBILIFNTE
$ o



BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the existing directors shall hold office only until the
next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not
less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart
from retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-
executive director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no
director will remain in office for a term of more than three years.
If there exists any relationship among the members of the Board,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship, the disclosure has been published in the sections
headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
and "“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’
Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important
duties of the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board
always acts in the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall
ensure the effective operation of the Board and fully perform his/
her duties and ensure all important issues are discussed at Board
meetings in a timely manner. All directors will be consulted for any
proposed items in the agenda. The chairman has delegated the
drafting of the agenda of each Board meeting to the chief executive
and the company secretary. With the assistance of the chief
executive and the company secretary, the chairman aims to ensure
all directors are adequately briefed on any issues being put forward
at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and reliable information in
a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in
Board meetings and committee meetings and make independent
judgements on issues related to the Group's strategies,
performance, interest conflicts and management process so as to
ensure the interests of all Shareholders are properly considered.
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations made by each of
the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded
all independent non-executive directors as independent parties in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board
exercises its rights in management decision on the aspects of
the Company’s development strategy, management structure,
investment and financing, planning, financial control and personnel
in accordance with the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company’s
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 and to audit the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The directors of the Company
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the annual report and the interim report.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the directors have selected and applied
appropriate accounting policies and have made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
66 to 67.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to review of the effectiveness of the Company’'s internal
control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(f)  to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above activities during 2016.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board convened six
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement
and recent market conditions. The Board also considered and
approved the Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and reviewed interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2016.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee, attended the AGM of the Company held on 13 May
2016.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the
Board at the meetings held in 2016:

it

BEE20m)

m

EESEERREAE
HE2016F12A31HILEFE EFEEEHAKX
g% UWENHEERE BT RkE&EEAMMR -
EZQNCERMUERNEE 2 BEBRE - #H2
2015F 12 A3 BIEFEMNKEZEFEENE
£2016F6H30H IE/NE AL ER R HAZE -

ETeIELERZES  REZESNFME
BEeNERHELEEARRFTN2016F5H13HE
ITHRERFRS -

TREJ2016FEEGERBNLFESABER

Meetings attended/eligible to attend
HERY, REREEHRH

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors BEx BREAFAS BEEg ERZEE REZEE FHZEEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei == 171 6/6 - 1/1 1/1
Zuo Manlun Tm e 0/1 6/6 - 1/1 1/1
Zuo Xiaoping TR 0/1 3/6 - - -
Lai Zhigiang faEoa 11 6/6 - - -
Kong Zhaocong FLIKEE 11 5/6 - - -
Chen Guonan PREIRE 11 4/6 - - -
Lin Shaoquan wz 0/1 5/6 - - -
Huang Guirong =HEE 11 5/6 - - -
Luo Jianfeng g 11 6/6 - - -
Non-executive director FHITES
Lin Dewei iEeE 11 6/6 2/2 - -
Independent

non-executive directors BHIFEHITES
Fung Pui Cheung pepepics 11 5/6 2/2 11 11
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan ~ FEI% 0N 5/6 2/2 1N Al
Cheung Man Yu RXF 11 6/6 2/2 - 171
Lan Fang Eb; 171 5/6 - 1/1 -
Tao Zhigang ) 7 ) - 4/6 - - -
Note: fEE -
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) REERMABE  EFHAHES BBREFEXEMR

video conference in accordance with the Articles.

(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2016.

BERRTHERE -
(o)  M2016FA - HEEMARAGET -

15

Annual Report 2016 4



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERWME

>

BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the
directors and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance
with the Articles and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda
and the relevant documents will be provided to all directors in
a timely manner. The chairman will give a proper briefing to all
directors on items to be put forward at a Board meeting. To ensure
compliance with the procedure of Board meetings and all applicable
rules and regulations, all directors may gain a full understanding
of all relevant data in a timely manner and may receive advice
and services from the company secretary. The minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for
inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive
induction package covering the summary of the responsibilities
and obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the
Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies Registry to each newly
appointed director to ensure he/she to have sufficient awareness of
good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the directors
with written materials, as well as organises seminars on the
professional knowledge and latest development of regulatory
requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.

In 2016, the Company invited The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

to give a seminar on the topic of “"How to Create Corporate Value
through M&A and Spin-off” to Board members.

1 6 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

BEES@H)

EEEERRRRAE(H)
ARRAEFHHRENEFTIERAE  ME
ZEeRERFOETERAR AR MR
il - FELEAXHEREBRAZBESHEL - =
FeREseed tRENEENZBESR(FE
2% ARNAESTSEREFMAAEN
MRS  FREEFTA KB EMEEMRE
HEEE YA EARMEREER MRS - &
EERACHHARWERT AIHEERAR
AAZ AN EE] -

EERIIRXE
ARRBBEE2HFERELRR ERAEH
BEZMBREEE - ARAMSEHEENES
REPEMNMEENT - REFELHARE
EZBEREBME  ARARZAEBEIEXFIA
REBLRAEMEZRLNESEIES - BERE
BEERDANERELEXERER -

NREMETRRAERER TR  CEERT
FRAR B A BLE B 2 S 28 LB R IR 1 40
MEEER  TRFFBEFEREHE SR LB
BEZBEMBNEERTENRMER

R2016%F  ARAIFHIBFELESTEERES
SRERNTNE  TES [WABRBEES G
MAFETRREE]



BOARD (Continued)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued)
Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on
the training records provided to the Company by the directors, the

Exg(#&)

ESRIEXER)

BT B R AR RREMIFIIN - REBEEFRAX
NERMEIEIIRE - R2016%F - EENESH

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2016: ATEE -
Type of trainings

Directors BE= EIER
Executive directors HTES
Wong Luen Hei =S A C
Zuo Manlun Eimim A, C
Zuo Xiaoping ST A, C
Lai Zhigiang FEER A, C
Kong Zhaocong FLIKER A, C
Chen Guonan PR B R A C
Lin Shaoquan 2 A C
Huang Guirong -4 A C
Luo Jianfeng HiEE A C
Non-executive director FHITES
Lin Dewei WEE A C
Independent non-executive directors BYEHITES
Fung Pui Cheung HIEE A C
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TE= A C
Cheung Man Yu RXF A C
Lan Fang bz A, B, C
Tao Zhigang B =5 1 A, B, C

Note: BT -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEEMEER SEERKHE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: Nifstek  Semk Fwmigis

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the C: [EAEZERE @ &F 25 BE  BEREAKAD

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and

business of the Company

ARBHAN - BE - HWREN
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BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and
ensure the Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations
and corporate governance development and has considered their
opinions when making a decision. The company secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with its continuing
obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and
other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the company secretary
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of
trust proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Island
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time),
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain
committees under its supervision, including the Company's
audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) (collectively known as “Board
Committees”). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred
as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung (chairman of the Audit Committee and independent
non-executive director), Mr. Lin Dewei (non-executive director),
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility
of the Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective
audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group's economic operation
and financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures,
risk management, internal control, external audit, internal audit,
financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each
year. In 2016, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on
page 15.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2016:

° review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2015, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

o review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2015, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2016 AGM;

° review of continuing connected transactions;

° review of the Group internal audit reports;

EEZEY

EEECBRERES R TESEE IS TZE
g BREAQRZEZZES([ERZEE])
¥z Ee((FMEES ) UARREEZES([IR
2Zz8e|)(hiEhEELEg]) - EELEg
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B AN R EIE -
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BRLL  BUFRTESFTIERLEREXT
A BRZEENIZRERUAEENEE
BTN HES  MBEEK  MBERF  RRE
B RERES - ShEREE - AEREE  MBES
WENPBEBNAEBEERIEETEL TN
B BHESTERITEEBERE -

BRLEECEBFELARAIEHEMN - 12016
FoBERZECERATMASH - ZS5gmod
Eresk (AR ) SAINE 168 -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2016, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2016;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and the corporate governance
disclosures for the six months ended 30 June 2016, with
recommendations to the Board for approval;

review of the corporate social responsibility report for the
year ended 31 December 2015 with a recommendation to the
Board for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk
management, internal control system and internal audit
function under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the
annual report and annual results announcement for the year ended
31 December 2016 with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the service fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

BEEZEE @)
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FEIH 220166 A30H L/ & A8 HiTR
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EM BB KEHMESMEEREZES
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R EAER RIFEA R

EHHZE2015F12831BILEENLES
SAMRE REIE201656 8308 IE/5E AR

XEABRE  YEREFSAB

EHHE2015F12A831HIEFEMHLEL
SEIWE  TEEAZEFER6B: X

RIBTRIEMFERRER - NEEH R
KRB LR RS - WRHRESEA
Z@o

REEHERE  BEREZECENEZ2016F12A4

BTHLEFENFREFERENS -

WEEES

2B -

HMNEE A% 24 B
HZE2016F 12 A31MHILEE - NEBE @ INEZ
MBI NSEN 2 RBEREIDOT

RMB million
AR¥EEET
Annual audit services FEETRE 5.67
Non-audit services IEFE T ARTS
— Interim results review — R HAREED 1.46
- Others* — Hth# 0.56
Total et 7.69

#

20

"Others"” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The
provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient

due to their professional knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both of them are
independent non-executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company's directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee have the delegated responsibility
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management. In order to determine the level
of remuneration and fees paid to members of the Board, market
rates and factors such as each director’'s workload, responsibility
and job complexity are taken into account. The following factors
are considered when determining the remuneration packages of
directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

o individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2016, the Remuneration Committee convened one
meeting, assessed the performance of the Company’s directors
and senior management, reviewed terms of their service contracts,
and made recommendation of the remuneration packages for
directors and senior management to the Board. The attendance
record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 15.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the remuneration of the two senior management fell
within the band of less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and
executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Ms. Lan Fang (all of
them are independent non-executive directors). The major duty of
the Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations
on the candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company'’s directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2016, the Nomination Committee convened one
meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, recommended the Board on the list
of retiring directors for re-election at the AGM on 13 May 2016,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The attendance record of the meeting is set out on a
named basis on page 15.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and other qualities. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors.
Two of them are females. One third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The composition
of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional
experience and knowledge for effective leadership of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Board is also
responsible for monitoring the design, implementation and review
on the risk management and internal control system as carried
out by management, while management has the responsibility
to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such system. To
this end, management continues to allocate resources for an risk
management and internal control system compatible with the
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of
the Group and in achieving business objectives by the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously
monitored and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, and is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient and effective. The review covered all material aspects
with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control. The internal audit reports submitted
to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover aspects of risk
management and internal control. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which may affect the Shareholders,
and believes that the Group has fully complied with the code
provisions on internal controls, including compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board,
through the appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs received by the staff and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting function at the
Board meeting. In light of the Group’s nature of business and the
recommendations on the Board's role in risk management, the
Group has developed risk management system and policies, and
established a risk management project team, which is responsible
for the Group's risk management, to communicate and assess
the Group's risk profile and material risks, and track the progress
of mitigation plans and activities of material risks and report on
detailed examinations of specific risks as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM BEEEASRER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation AEEDEY —EXSMAKLEE  YWAEEAN
structure to manage the risks encountered by the Group. The MEHWERETEIE - EF'IE‘;‘ ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ 21E
risk management structure of China Lesso comprised of two key Eﬁﬁlﬂl%@f}%l% | REMERKREER

factors: risk management structure and risk management program. °
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM RREBEASER @)
(Continued)
(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (A) EREEEZERE
REGULATORY ORGANISATION EL RS
The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the EEe FE2EAREEIENERMES

overall risk management

° determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk ° BELERREESELLEE . BRR
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve 7 BRARAE - HERKEEEER
risk management strategies, major risk mitigation MEBEXNERGFEIRANARE RS
solutions and risk management measures; i

° comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the e HEHEMEEBEMLCY@EEMKZEBEIREARR
enterprise and its existing management situations, and RERRESIEIRNR - A SEE S
make effective risks management decisions; approve SRR HEEE AKERE BEX
the decision-making standards and mechanisms B« EABEMEEERERIZAH
regarding major operating decisions, major risks, major BT A o | T e )

events and major business processes;

. approve risk management report related to major o HWHEEBARFEENRBETERE
decisions; and &

o approve the annual comprehensive risk management o HEFEIERAKESERE o
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION B I AR

The Audit Committee, the highest risk management EREES QIR ELANRKRSER

organisation in the Company which is accountable to the B HEseas

Board

. review the establishment and planning of the o EXIHEAMRTIEEAXMERRE

comprehensive risk management system;

o review the proposal on the structure of the risk o ZEBELEEASMELTLAEBRSE
management organisations and their responsibilities; LE

i review the annual comprehensive risk management e EEUVTMEZTSRILEEZIEARME
report and submit to the Board; BHE

o review risk management strategies, major risk o ZLEMETIEFBNEARLESIER
management solutions and risk management measures; RARANEREEEN &
and

i review the annual risk management work plan. o EZFETEKMEBIEITIEEZ -
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LEADING RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION

Risk management project team, the leading risk
management organisation

° responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company'’s risk management policies and mechanisms;

° formulate and submit annual risk management work plan
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

o regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss
major risks as faced by the Company; and

° assess the soundness, reasonability and the
effectiveness in implementing the risk management
system, and review the annual comprehensive risk
management report, risk management strategies and
day-to-day risk management solutions.

RISK IMPLEMENTATION ORGANISATION

Each functional department of the Company shall accept
the coordination and monitor carried out by the risk
management project team

o implement the basic process in risk management;

o consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

o analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

o properly carry out risk management work of the
functional department; and

° establish a comprehensive risk management process of
the functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

28

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

RISK SUPPORTING ORGANISATION

Internal control team

o assist the Group’s risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management
solutions;

° assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of
risk management in each functional departments and
operating units; and

o assist the timely rectification and improvements to
existing deficiencies of each functional department
based on the findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

o assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

o carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

° after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing

results to internal control team and risk management
project team timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM B EIEASERE
(Continued)

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B) EREEERER
The Group has established a comprehensive risk management ZIKE@E%_L—ﬁ ZNRBEERZERN - Z
program which is led by the risk management project team RBAHEMREIRIE B AHZESE - AESMATE
and implemented with the assistance of the internal audit AT - R EEERXOT ¢

department and internal control team. The risk management
program is as follows:

(a) to collect first-hand information for risk management; (a) EBEEF—FEANUWE

(b)  to analyse and assess risks; (b)  [EB2 o HT AR

(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk (c) RHRERELRE  WEKRKRE?
management solutions; and BRARFER &

(d) to supervise the implementation of risk management (d) %T%%fiihﬂ REETIEERBRN
works performed by each business units and verify the HEITEE MRS BRFTE -

overall score.

Key corporate risk management program FEPERBEERER
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole
process of risk management, connecting the channels of
communication of risk management information along the
reporting lines and among various departments and business units
to ensure the timely, accurate and complete communication of
information and this has laid the foundation for the supervision and
enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating
to the first-hand information collection for risk management,
risk assessment, risk management strategies, critical control
activities and the implementation of risk management solutions.
The risk management project team carries out an annual review
and examination on the implementation of the works on risk
management by different departments and business units and its
effectiveness for the year, assesses risk management strategies
and evaluates inter-departmental risk management solutions and
business units’ risk management solutions, proposes suggestions
for adjustments and improvements and issues evaluation and
recommendation reports which will be sent to the relevant senior
management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

In 2016, during the course of business planning, we identified
the material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects
of macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The
Group's corresponding measures on risk management include
reviewing the management strategies and mechanism for macro-
economic risks; reviewing the relevant mechanism on the
collection of intelligence about the changes in the external macro-
economic environment; clearly defining the macro-economic risk
analysis session; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the
strategies for managing macro-economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition arise from the risks involved in the formulation of
competition strategies and risks involved in the collection of
clients’ information. The Group’s risk management measures
include reviewing the management mechanism for market
competition strategies; analysing the Company’s position in market
competition, reviewing the corresponding market competition
strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the management
strategies in response to the changes in the market competition
environment and submitting report thereon to management;
collecting the market competition information of new products and
offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company
is easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufactures’ power and labor cost structure, changes in the price
of resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group's risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price
in the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the
fluctuation of raw materials price and releasing such information
internally through an established channel; regularly reporting and
analysing the fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining
the analysis session for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw
materials price; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the
management strategies for the risks of fluctuation of raw materials
price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the
risks of adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments
of urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction
projects of significant water works including water saving and
water supplies; risks of adjustments of real estate policies.
The Group’s risk management measures include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for risks involved in the
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry; collecting information in relation to changes
in environmental protection, economy and industry policies and
releasing such information internally through an established
channel; reviewing the mechanism for monitoring and collecting the
information on laws and regulations that affect the industry.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing
obligations on information management and disclosure to formally
regulate the monitoring of inside information that arises during the
course of its current business development and has established
the practice of delivering such information to shareholders, the
media and analysts. When the Group handles the relevant matters,
it will comply with “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by Securities and Futures Commission and the related
provisions issued by regulatory organisations and the Group has
clearly stated that the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information is prohibited. The Group has a system of answering
enquiries about the Group’'s matters by external parties, and has
appointed and authorised the senior executives of the Group to
act as the Company’s spokesperson in response to enquiries on a
particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the chairman or the
Audit Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the
designated address or by phone. Such matters may include
misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding financial matters
and accounting practices without fear of being accused. Any
Shareholder or stakeholder can also report similar concerns in
writing or verbally in confidence to the Audit Committee.

THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office. The requisition
shall specify the object of the meeting and be signed by the
requisitionist(s), and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at the general meeting of the Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
(Continued)

° The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which the meeting may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of
a special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’
notice in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting
shall be called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The
notice of the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda
of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered
and in the case of special business, the general nature of that
business.

° Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company's website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board at the Company's principal place of business
in Hong Kong or by email or through the Company's investor
relations whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this report. In addition, the Shareholders
can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
the Company's branch share registrar, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company and general meetings. The Company
encourages the Shareholders to attend the Company’s general
meetings. The Group's financial and other information is also
published on the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company’s senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/
analyst meetings irregularly and led investors and analysts to visit
its plants.

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen
its corporate responsibility so that global investors can have
an adequate knowledge and understanding of the Company’s
operating strategy, financial performance and development
prospects. The Company will actively develop and maintain close
relationship with investors, analysts and media to achieve sound
investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business
and performance, nor does the Company engage in discussion on
events or trends related to the reporting period. The Company will
not initiate any meeting or conference call with public in which
these matters are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or
30 days prior to the disclosure of annual results or interim results
respectively, and lasts until the announcement of the annual results
or the interim results.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no change
to the memorandum and Articles of the Company. The latest
memorandum and Articles of the Company is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

HEERXH

REZE2016F12A31HIEFE » ARRERK
MEERMAUBETAEE AQFEHEREKR

ML ERAA RN ARE MR FIREEER o

Annual Report 2016 &%

35



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

China Lesso is a leading large-scale industrial group which
produces building materials and interior decoration products
in mainland China. In its effort to internationalise its business
amid globalisation, the Group has established over 22 advanced
production bases in 16 regions within China and such foreign
countries as the United States and Canada. The Group strives
to refine its strategic planning and sales network, offering a
comprehensive range of diverse industrial products and quality
sales services.

The Group continued to reinforce its leading position in southern
China market with its quality products, advanced technologies
in research and development and a wide sales network. In
recent years, the Group has been actively developing business
in other local markets and overseas markets. In addition to the
core business of pipe manufacturing, the Group accelerated
the expansion of the business of building materials and interior
decoration products, including systems of doors and windows,
sanitary ware products and integrated kitchens, thereby providing
all-in-one solution that includes cost-effective building materials,
interior decoration products and services for its customers.

Besides, the Group has launched a diversified 020 platform Lesso
Mall which has been offering hardware, electrical equipment and
building materials since March 2015. Meanwhile, the Group has
established strategic cooperation with local partners to expand
distribution business and increase market penetration of products
by introducing Lesso chain stores in mainland China.

MARKET REVIEW

In 2016, China’'s economic slowdown abated as the restructuring
of the supply side progressed. Since the 13th Five-year Plan
began in 2016, there has been continuous growth in the Chinese
Government's investment in infrastructure projects. In order to
ensure the safety of water supply and reduce water pollution, the
Chinese government accelerates the construction of major civil and
environmental hydro projects. Meanwhile, the Chinese government
enhances the urban functions by various means, namely a new
mode of urbanisation, acceleration of shantytown renovation,
redevelopment of dilapidated housing, refurbishment of the
underground pipeline network and the promotion of “Sponge City".
The government policies on such large-scale projects will stimulate
the demand for pipes and pipe fittings.
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During the year, China pressed on with the plan of “Sponge
City"and the construction of “Underground Pipeline Utility Tunnel”.
In May 2016, the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development and the Ministry of Water Resources
together designated 14 cities (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian and
Shanghai, etc.) to carry out the pilot scheme of “Sponge City".
Through the redesign of the urban planning and redevelopment, the
cities covered by the “Sponge City” scheme will be more efficient
in absorbing water, storing water, purifying water and recycling
rainwater. It also helps to prevent flood. More than 20 provinces
in China had participated in the “Sponge City"” scheme, involving
thousands of projects. The size of the market for construction
is expected to reach RMB2 trillion by 2020. Construction for
“Underground Pipeline Utility Tunnel” has been implemented in
different parts of China. According to the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development, as at 20 December 2016, a total of
2,005 km of pipelines have been constructed in 147 cities of 28
provinces under the “Underground Pipeline Utility Tunnel” scheme,
presenting a huge business opportunity to the pipe industry.

Meanwhile, the Chinese government accelerates the construction
of facilities for sewage treatment and discharging water.
In December 2016, the National Development and Reform
Commission published the “Program for Construction of the
National Urban Wastewater Treatment and Recycling Facilities
under the 13th Five-year Plan” and set a new target. It plans to add
134,400 km of new pipelines to the drainage network, repair 42,400
km of old pipelines of the drainage network and rebuild 38,900 km
of pipelines to the system that collects and diverts both rainwater
and sewage. The programme aims at forming an integrated system
that discharges water and treats sewage in the urban areas of the
country. The investment program of RMB582.9 billion is expected
to further boost the demand for pipes used for water supply and
discharge of water in the cities.

In addition, the Ministry of Environmental Protection and the
National Development and Reform Commission jointly announced
“Assessment of Action Plan for Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution (Trial)” in December 2016 with the aim of assessing
how well the local governments implement the “Action Plan for
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution” and how well they
maintain the water quality. The plan can stimulate investment in
the water industry so as to solve such problems as pollution from
industrial sewage and low efficiency in water usage. According to
the Ministry of Environmental Protection, the plan will call for a total
investment of more than RMB2 trillion by 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN RO

MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

On the other hand, the Chinese government has been actively
implementing policy to help reduce the housing inventory during
the year. As a result, the country's property market gradually
recovered. According to the National Bureau of Statistics,
investment in China’s property development in 2016 increased
by 6.9% to RMB10,258.1 billion. The growth was larger than the
percentage increase of 1.0% in 2015. The number of transactions
in the residential property market also hit a record high in 2016.
The area of residential flats sold in the country increased by 22.5%
to 1.57349 billion sg.m. The improvement of the property market
and the demand generated by the new mode of urbanisation
led to the gradual recovery of the market for building materials
and interior decoration products. The Department of Circulation
Industry Development and the China Building Materials Circulation
Association jointly announced the 2016 national building materials
household index (BHI), indicating that the total sales volume at
large bazaars for building materials and interior decoration products
increased by 9.3% to RMB1,185.28 billion for the year.

The Government was pressing ahead with the “Belt and Road
Initiative” in 2016 and achieved good results. More than 100
countries and international organisations showed support for
China’s initiative and more than 40 countries and international
organisations signed cooperation agreements with China. A
number of major projects were launched under the initiative and
received huge financial support from the Chinese government.
The National Development and Reform Commission adopted a
mode of cooperation between the Chinese government and private
investors, namely the public-private partnerships, in the countries
covered by the “Belt and Road Initiative”. The commission also
encouraged the Chinese enterprises to expand their business
into overseas markets. Infrastructure has been a major part of the
action plan. During the year, investment in infrastructure projects
continued to increase in the countries covered by the “Belt and
Road Initiative”. The large-scale investment in the projects creates
huge demand for products like building materials, hardware,
electrical equipment, pipes and pipe fittings.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

China Lesso mainly operates three business units, including
plastic pipes and pipe fittings, building materials and interior
decoration products and its 020 platform Lesso Mall. During the
year, the Group further consolidated its business of plastic pipe
and pipe fittings and increased the sales volume by supplying
to governments’ infrastructure projects. Meanwhile, the Group
actively developed its businesses of building materials and interior
decoration products as well as the Lesso Mall. As a result, the
total revenue of the Group grew steadily and rose by 12.8% to
RMB17,221 million (2015: RMB15,264 million).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by business

E 3 e

FEBETELE - REREN - B BRE
ENEH BVREBEERULETHEFAHE
EHEEK TR AEBEEEEBHEE
REGER  S2HBNSEAZEBNESER
HE - A AEENEGRRENKE M2
R - At - AEBZ RIRAIRFRES I
R128% 2 ARME172.211870 (201546 : ARE
162.64187T) °

TREFHI2016F K 2015 F WAL EK S 5 6 FF

unit for 2016 and 2015: =
Revenue % of total revenue
['ON LA A %
2016 2015
RMB million RMB million Change 2016 2015
ARBBEERT ARKRSET 2E
Plastic Pipes and BRIEBR
Pipe Fittings s 14,745 13,602 8.4% 85.6% 89.1%
Building Materials EMEREER
and Interior
Decoration
Products 1,011 816 23.9% 5.9% 5.3%
Lesso Mall HEs 2B P 3 1,018 621 63.9% 5.9% 4.1%
Others* Hfib# 447 225 98.7% 2.6% 1.5%
Total st 17,221 15,264 12.8% 100.0% 100.0%

#

“Others"” include businesses of environmental engineering and other related

services, financial services and others.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN RO

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the number of the Group's independent
and exclusive tier-one distributors increased to 2,146 all over the
country (2015: 2,130). Southern China remained as the Group's
major revenue contributor while the Group was actively developing
business in other local markets in the country. The Group put its
production base in Shandong into operation in first half of 2016.
The Group enhanced the facilities at its production bases in Hainan
and Guangdong, increasing their capacity and raising their capacity
utilisation rates. Meanwhile, the Group continued to raise the level
of automation and began to work on the plan to construct the
production base in Hunan province. During the year, revenue from
southern China and those from other regions accounted for 59.9%
and 40.1% respectively (2015: 569.7% and 40.3% respectively) of
the Group's total revenue.

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by region for
2016 and 2015:

S 7% 0 B8 (#0)

#H1F2016F12A31H » AEBER2E A E
VRR —RCHEEEBEIEE2146% (20154 -
2,130%) - EFEMSNARETEBNEETS -
MASE M ERABRERETSUIIE - EfIL
HAEREMBN2016F X FI8E - AEBNME
fb/EmEm N ERAEEMMNRE IR HEER
MERgEFAE -FAR  AfEFERSBEEK
o WHIRHBRMENEEREM - FR - K&
B2k B E R M R A AR R B
AU A DRI A59.9% % 40.1% (20154 : 59.7%
$40.3%) °

TR#EFI20164F K 2015F YA 1L (2 8] 55 B9 57

%

Revenue % of total revenue
WA R4 A %
2016 2015
RMB million RMB million Change 2016 2015
Region* Hh [ * AREBHET AREBETT 2

Southern China R 10,308 9,112 13.1% 59.9% 59.7%
Southwestern China #& 1,572 1,386 13.4% 9.1% 9.1%
Central China HEh 1,721 1,576 9.2% 10.0% 10.3%
Eastern China FEE 1,067 839 27.2% 6.2% 5.5%
Northern China B3] 1,074 976 10.0% 6.2% 6.4%
Northwestern China  Fadit 571 601 (5.1)% 3.3% 3.9%
Northeastern China  #dk 372 321 16.1% 2.2% 2.1%
Outside China R ER AN 536 453 18.2% 3.1% 3.0%
Total HET 17,221 15,264 12.8% 100.0% 100.0%

# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to # ZH R B EBEFBEHNRAMERRM TS -

consolidated financial st
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) EAEN-E )

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BREEREH

The plastic pipes and pipe fittings business remains a mainstay HEHBBH T L EK AT BR T EREHE
operation of China Lesso. The Group offered a comprehensive 7% o AEEEEES > AN BHEBELEHE
range of plastic pipes and pipe fittings, which can be applied to & * A FER AR ~ Bk ~ B HHE L@ - A
water supply, drainage, power supply, communications, gas supply, R&®%  BENLKESEE - WE L EHEE
agriculture and aquaculture, floor heating and fire services. During 5 « £ - BRI EE L EHEBOEESE LIk
the year, the sales volume and revenue from the plastic pipes and  FiB#E « EKUAIZERL NG 4% « (L E4E
pipe fittings business grew steadily; the revenue rose by 8.4% and W A#I85.6% (20154 : 89.1% ) °

accounted for 85.6% of the Group's total revenue (2015: 89.1%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic =~ T & %2016 K2015F B S B R EHETE
pipes and pipe fittings business by product application for 2016 and WAL E RERAZ| DS ¢
2015:

Revenue % of revenue
['ON EBA %
2016 2015
RMB million RMB million Change 2016 2015
ARBBEERT ARKRSET 2E
Water Supply oK 5,898 5,453 8.2% 40.0% 40.1%
Drainage HEK 5,612 5,193 8.1% 38.0% 38.2%
Power supply and T HE N mE
telecommunications 2,534 2,190 15.7% 17.2% 16.1%
Gas Transmission  PAR#hx 189 248 (23.9)% 1.3% 1.8%
Others* Hith# 512 518 (1.1)% 3.5% 3.8%
Total @t 14,745 13,602 8.4% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [Ei | BEER - #iE&OH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN RO

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS (Continued)
The table below sets out the breakdown of average selling price,
sales volume, and revenue from plastic pipes and pipe fittings

S 7% 0 B8 (#0)

BREEREN(H)
TREFI2016F R2016FBHEERENED
RERMHESNTFHERE HERRADIEF

business by product material for 2016 and 2015: 1% :
Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
THER #E WA
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB RMB Change Tonne Tonne Change RMB million RMB million Change
ARE ARE £5 L} g £5 \R¥AEER AREEER £5
PVC products PVCER 6,954 7112 (22)% 1,379,844 1,240,900 11.2% 9,595 8,825 87%
Non-PVC products® FPVCER? 15,841 15,868 (0.2)% 325,068 301,054 80% 5,150 4771 7.8%
Total @i 8,648 8,821 2.0/%  1,704912 1,541,954 10.6% 14,745 13,602 8.4%
# “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or  * [JEPVC B RIE 8 K B 1 £ B EPESKPP-RE| °
PP-R.

In recent years, the Chinese government has actively pursued the
policy of developing infrastructure for economic growth, and the
Group capitalised on the growing demand for plastic pipes and
pipe fittings. As a result, both the sales volume and revenue from
this business unit increased. In terms of product materials, sales
volume of PVC products increased by 11.2% to 1,379,844 tonnes
(2015: 1,240,900 tonnes) while that of non-PVC products increased
by 8.0% to 325,068 tonnes (2015: 301,054 tonnes). Revenue from
sales of PVC products increased by 8.7% to RMB9,595 million
(2015: RMB8,825 million) while that of non-PVC products increased
by 7.8% to RMB5,150 million (2015: RMB4,777 million).

The Group priced its products on a cost-plus basis. In the second
half of 2016, the market price of raw materials increased. However,
the Group was able to keep the raw material cost stable and
reduced the average selling price of its plastic pipes and pipe
fittings slightly, by 2.0%, to RMB8,648 per tonne (2015: RMB8,821
per tonne) during the year as one of the ways to stay competitive.
It was able to do so because of its sound procurement strategy
and economies of scale. As the Group automated and scaled up its
production at its production bases during the year, the gross profit
margin of this business unit reached 28.9% (2015: 27.8%). The
overall sales volume of the Group's plastic pipes and pipe fittings
grew steadily.
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FER - AEBRAREGES R EHRSBEEREEE
BRAMBELE  AEBICIEMEHBRE G K
EEEIEMNMKE R EBBEUNHEER
WA - ERDEFE  PVCE RIS EILFEMN
11.2% 21,379,844 ME (20154 : 1,240,900MF) -
FEPVCEE fh M) 58 = 12 F 3 J18.0% Z 325,068 1§
(20154 : 301,054M8) - HEPVCEmMATFUIA
N8 7% = ARKI5.95(2 7L (201654 + ARE
88.2518 L) * M4 E FEPVCE M FTE W AL N
7.8%&E ARKES1.50B7C(2015%F « AR¥47.77
BIr) °

REBRKANKELEBETERER - 20165F
THF EMETELEA - A F1 @ AEE
BEMRBIEEMRMERAN  WHEBREBERE
HRFEHEBEERMAK2.0% = EFM A RS,648
JL(20154 « GHEARYS,8217T) * MiMARE
F ERmERNAEERITARERE RREL
e AR FRAEBEHEEEE BB RER
B REBEMEFEE28.9% (20155 -
27.8%) c REBEBHEEREHNEBEEE
RERBER -



BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR DECORATION PRODUCTS
China’s property market recovered in 2016, recording a significant
increase in both investment and the floor area sold. During the year,
the Group has been actively developing the business of building
materials and interior decoration products, which mainly provides
property developers with various types of integrated building
materials and interior decoration products, as well as the solution
for their residential property projects. The Group also provides
diverse products, including sanitary ware products, integrated
kitchens, systems of doors and windows and decorative boards,
etc. This business unit developed gradually on the back of China’s
urbanisation, and achieved synergy with the businesses of other
existing product lines. Revenue of this business unit increased by
23.9% to RMB1,011 million (2015: RMB816 million), accounting
for 5.9% of the Group’s total revenue. In the future, the Group will
make an effort to widen the range of products of this business unit
and will take advantage of Lesso Mall to boost the revenue of this
business unit.

LESSO MALL

Since its establishment in March 2015, the Group's e-commerce
platform, Lesso Mall, has been selling diverse products and
providing various services, through a business model that links
online and offline operations. During the year, Lesso Mall was
developing its business steadily. In the second half of 2016, the
Group has successfully refined its strategy for operating Lesso
Mall, and formed strategic business partnerships and cooperated
with its local distributors and business partners to expand the
sales channels and increase the market penetration of the Group's
products. It has introduced several Lesso chain stores which sell
products online and offline, and provide supply chain service.

During the year, the business operation of Lesso Mall performed
well and recorded an operating revenue of approximately
RMB1,018 million, which was encouraging. Its registered member
accounts reached 4,902 (2015: 2,032). Lesso Mall will be a
growth driver of the Group in the future. In order to prepare for
overseas expansion of Lesso Malls, the Group acquired pieces
of land in Thailand, Australia, United States and Canada. As at 31
December 2016, the total investment in the properties amounted
to approximately RMB2.5 billion, which was mainly attributable the
new lands acquired for Lesso Mall’s overseas business.

S 7% [0 BE ()

ENREER

FEEMEMSR2016FRIE K EBRIHEE
HEAHESARIERE - AEERFREGHEZE
MEREERER  AEHWEREHRHEZEER
—BENEMREERRBRIER - KEER
HKBRADER BEBE - PIE 25 REMIR
MEZTTLEmM « ZEBEMELE P B ELE
REZE DM - BREMIBBREREIFERRM
fE o ZEMFEMNKEEE239%EARE10.11
Brr(2015%F : ARG 16f8IT) @ IEAEERAU
AHB5.9% o K2R - AEBBBNIMEZEBEN
MWERBE  WEAH BN AZERSEMK

MR -

Bk 38 7 3

B2015F3 AR AEENEFHEFA
B EMIBRR ERETHEBERIREZ L
MERMRE FR - BEFHEOESFEER
B o M2016F TG AEEEZLLEHNE
TEREE - W HAAHP R EBRHETBEE
BAERE  EINEERERRAERNTISE
BE - AEEREAXZEEGR LB TIREE
o EEL 4 R 6 PR 755 A B 2B P M BRI o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

EQUITY INVESTMENT IN SHANGHAI SAFBON WATER SERVICE
CO., LTD. AND ACQUIRED MAJOR STAKES OF GUANGZHOU
EP ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING LTD.

To capitalise on the Chinese government’'s environmental
initiatives, the Group diversified into environmental protection
business. The Group acquired Guangzhou EP Environmental
Engineering Ltd. and its subsidiary (“GZEP") in April 2016.
GZEP provides environmental protection services, including
project consultation, environmental monitoring, design of
environmental protection solutions, construction services and
financing for environmental protection projects. Meanwhile,
the Group subscribed for the shares of Shanghai Safbon Water
Service Co., Ltd (“Safbon Water”) in October 2016. The Group
has approximately RMB731 million worth of available-for-sale
investments, which was mainly due to the equity investment
in Safbon Water. Safbon Water is engaged in industrial water
treatment, municipal water treatment, seawater desalination, solid
waste treatment, natural gas regulator stations and distributed
energy and other services. Synergy can be generated between the
investment in Safbon Water and the Group’s businesses of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings as well as its environmental protection.
The Group strives to become a one-stop environmental protection
service provider.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPACITY EXPANSION

The Group has expanded its annual designed plastic pipes and pipe
fittings production capacity to 2.2 million tonnes during the year.
(2015: 2.1 million tonnes). The increase was mainly attributable to
the production base in Shandong which commenced operation in
the first half of 2016.

The capital expenditure for 2016 was approximately RMB3.57
billion, which was mainly used for expansion of the existing
production bases, automation of the production bases in
Guangdong, construction of a production base in Shandong and the
acquisition of pieces of land in foreign countries for the expansion
of Lesso Mall’'s business.
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STRATEGIES FOR THE FUTURE

Looking ahead to 2017, enterprises will face more challenges as
the prospect of the global economy has become more uncertain.
China’s economic structure has been improving, showing that the
economy has been on the right track to a new norm. The Group
remains prudently optimistic about the prospect and it will actively
capitalise on the government policies which can favour the kind
of businesses that it is engaged in. The Group will implement the
following strategies:

INCREASE PRODUCTION CAPACITY

To consolidate its market leadership, the Group will continue
to enhance its market penetration in Southern China and other
regions. The Group will also further improve the machines and
facilities in its existing production bases, continue with the
automation and accelerate the production process, thereby
expanding production capacity and raising efficiency. The Group
is planning the construction of a production base in Hunan at a
preliminary stage.

TAKE STRATEGIC APPROACH TO ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION BUSINESS

China Lesso actively capitalised on China’s environmental
approach to its economic development, and as such, it plans to
expand the business of GZEP. As a strategic approach to the
environmental protection business, the Group will seek to achieve
synergy between its environmental protection business and its
other businesses; and to diversify its source of income through
acquisitions, cooperation with sizable environmental protection
companies, and participation in public-private partnerships.

EXPAND OVERSEAS BUSINESS OF LESSO MALL

Lesso Mall has been achieving promising results in China since it
commenced operation in 2015. The Group will further strengthen
its 020 businesses in China. It also plans to explore the overseas
markets by introducing the Lesso Mall there. It will establish Lesso
Home, a global 020 sales service platform for interior decoration
products, construction materials and hardware. The Group will
proactively seek for forming strategic partnerships and/or cooperate
with business partners and distributers worldwide to set up a new
business Lesso Home so as to support its sales and distribution
business with customer service support in overseas markets. At
the initial stage of its overseas expansion plan, the Group plans to
open Lesso Home in Sydney in the second half of 2017, in order to
capitalise on China's “Belt and Road Initiative”. Lesso Home will
fulfill such functions as direct-sale, distribution, sales and marketing
functions for brands of building materials and interior decoration
products from China Lesso and its business partners. The Group
believes that there is potential for significant development in this
kind of business, which can evolve into a growth driver.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN RO

RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's revenue
increased by 12.8% year-on-year to RMB17,221 million (2015:
RMB15,264 million). Benefited from the Group’'s sound
procurement strategy and economies of scale, the gross profit
rose by 16.4% to RMB4,582 million (2015: RMB3,938 million), with
gross profit margin up by 0.8 percentage points to 26.6% (2015:
25.8%).

The Group recruited more staff for business expansion and tapping
into new markets. This resulted in a corresponding increase in
expenditure, including staff costs, professional fees, marketing
and promotion expenses. Nevertheless, the Group effectively
managed its overall cost and enhanced operation efficiency
through economies of scale and improvement in the utilisation
rate of production facilities, so as to respond and reduce the
pressure which stemmed from rising costs. These measures have
contributed to the sustainable development and healthy profitability
of the Group. EBITDA was RMB3,125 million (2015: RMB2,653
million), representing an increase of 17.8% year-on-year and the
EBITDA ratio was 18.1% (2015: 17.4%) in 2016.

The Group's effective tax rate was 21.1% during the year under
review (2015: 21.6%). Profit before tax increased by 17.4% year-
on-year to RMB2,425 million (2015: RMB2,065 million) while profit
attributable to the owners of the Company increased by 18.6%
to RMB1,922 million (2015: RMB1,621 million). Basic earnings
per share increased by 19.2% vyear-on-year to RMB0.62 (2015:
RMBO0.52).

As a token of gratitude to the Shareholders for their support in the
past year, the Board proposed payment of final dividend of HK15
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK13
cents).
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance,
fund utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject
to effective centralised management and supervision. The Group
keeps reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total debts (i.e. total
borrowings) of approximately RMB4,695 million, of which 74.1%
was denominated in US dollar, 18.7% was denominated in HK dollar
and 7.2% was denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s borrowings
are subject to effective interest rates ranging from 1.06% to 4.90%
per annum with maturity periods ranging from within one year to
more than five years.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB10,059 million and RMB9,722
million respectively. The Group’s Current Ratio decreased to
1.03 from 1.88 as at 31 December 2015, while the Quick Ratio
decreased to 0.75 from 1.38 as at 31 December 2015. During the
year, the Group exercised the option to early repay the syndicated
long-term loans of US$290 million in January 2017. Therefore these
loans are reclassified to current liabilities in 2016. The Group's total
equity increased to approximately RMB11,538 million. The Group's
Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 28.9%.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB3,886 million as well as unutilised banking
facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging has been arranged during the year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's available-for-
sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately RMB36 million were pledged to a bank to secure
the banking facility granted and this banking facility has not been
utilised.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN RO

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of
approximately 9,100 employees including directors. Total staff
costs were RMB688 million during the year. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined
based on their work performance, professional experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus may be
paid to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits
to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme and
training programmes.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is always a top priority of China Lesso.
Adhering to the principles of “safe, healthy, energy efficient and
non-toxic”, the Group has applied the ideas of energy saving
and emission reduction throughout its product design, R&D,
production and practical operations, and has adopted a variety of
eco-friendly measures to minimize impact on the environment. On
top of that, the Group continues to improve criteria and measures
concerning management of environmental protection, and adopt
more simplified operating processes and energy-efficient hardware
to reduce consumption of energy and water resources, increase
benefits from resource consumption, reduce wastes emissions and
enhance recycling.

The Group complies with laws and regulations governing air
pollution, noise emission, solid waste discharge, and other
environmental protection issues in China. The environmental
management and compliance department works together with the
legal department to ensure the Group will keep abreast of the latest
development on environment-related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

China Lesso takes an active part in community investment and
public welfare, aiming to apply its influence and bring positive
changes to the communities where it operates. Meanwhile, the
Group is active in charitable contributions to support local education
and underprivileged groups. In addition to donations, the Group also
encourages its employees to serve the community as volunteers.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important
assets. In strict compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group protects the legitimate rights and interests
of its employees and fixes on its pay system based on the principles
of legality, equity, fairness and encouragement so as to ensure an
equal access to fair treatment and career opportunities. In addition,
the Group has formulated its own health and safety policies, carries
out routine safety patrols and actively pushes forward with relevant
management system building for the purpose of creating a safe
working environment for its employees.

With great emphasis on career development of its employees,
the Group is committed to creating diversified and comprehensive
development channels for its employees by offering a series of
training programs and regular lectures on safety and health through
its own Lesso College.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

Throughout the years, China Lesso has strived to maintain
uninterrupted communications with its suppliers for win-win results
based on the procurement principles of fairness, openness and
impartiality. The Group has put in place a Supplier Management
Code and conducts regular performance evaluation of its suppliers.
In addition, the Group has formulated a management system,
a reporting process and set up a management team against
malpractices in an effort to oversee behaviors of all its employees
and protect the interests and rights of the Company and its
shareholders. In respect of customer services and management,
the Group upholds the "market-oriented, customer-centred”
principle and with strict control over product quality. The Group is
committed to providing its customers with safe, reliable and quality
products.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
progress and performance in 2016 are disclosed in the upcoming
2016 CSR Report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Set out below are the report presented by the Board together with
the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries and a joint venture are set
out in notes 42 and 17 respectively to consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
by the group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis”. This discussion forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 171.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK15 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 29
May 2017, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
19 May 2017 (the “2017 AGM"). It is expected that the Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on Thursday, 8 June 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2017 AGM
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 16 May 2017 to Friday, 19 May 2017, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 15 May 2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

(B) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 25 May 2017 to Monday, 29 May 2017, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
receive the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity
provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 12 to 35.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 3. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s major properties and property interests
are set out on pages 172 to 173.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 32 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,351 million (2015: RMB2,392
million). The amount of RMB1,906 million (2015: RMB1,923
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than
4% of the Group's total turnover. The total purchase attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers was 31% of the Group’s total
purchases and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 17%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were
approximately RMB3.46 million (2015: RMB1.28 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Zuo Manlun, Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, Mr. Lai Zhigiang, Mr.
Chen Guonan and Mr. Huang Guirong are subject to retirement by
rotation at the 2017 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 6 to 10.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EERTHAIRNKG - HEARORE
EENERRAR

R2016F12A31H + AR EERITHEHER
A B S E AR A AR R A B (B H R B E 5B EXV
HAMTEE)NRG BEROREEEFRESR
BIEES R EIEGIFEI52EBR AR RFEN
EfMftRadsE  SURBFESFAZEBANART R
B AT e MO BT ¢

Number and capacity of shares of the Company interested®

FRAREROBERMEES

Percentage of
the issued share

Beneficial Interests of capital of
Name owner spouse Other interests Total the Company
ERAFE BT
#E BERHEA [TREY £ HiiE R g RAHE 2L
Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,118,485,000 (L)®@ 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.36%
EHE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,118,485,000 (L)@ 2,118,485,000 (L)®@ 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.36%
Zuo Manlun 3,842,000 (L) - - 3,842,000 (L) 0.12%
e
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
pegead
Note: B 5
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FEILIEZALTRZEESFNTE -
(b)  These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-  (b) ZEARABRMBHEENFE - ZAFHAZEESD

owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.I.)
Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust"”), the settlor of which
is Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“"Mr. Wong"). The discretionary beneficiaries of the
Trust included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company held by
the Trust under the SFO as directors of the Company.

(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out in
note (b) above. Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is the spouse of Mr. Wong, and therefore Ms.
Zuo Xiaoping is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Wong is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors, chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Number of issued

BREZZRAERAEMBRRNVER R

UL A
RR

$2016F 12 A31H » AR R DL ABRE KA
FPHREREZESRAEKIIFEI6KATFED
TP ERARENAT(RARAES
MATHBEBIN AT

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares held® of the Company
BFENE &7 HERAFERT
BEEE 51 LiEREA N =R
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.28%
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited {ZsEA®
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled
corporation® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.28%
HERE SR EAER
New Fortune Beneficial owner® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.28%
HEE EmEa AL
Note: FE5E -
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FH[LIEZATRZEESNITAE
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set (b) ZERMER EX [EFRITHERNERG - HERD

out in note (b) in the section headed "“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on 14
May 2010 (the “Adoption Date"”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations and the summary of terms
of such Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the Company's
prospectus dated 9 June 2010. No share options have been
granted, under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme ("“Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or
similar position in any member of the Group, any full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of
any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the
Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
300,000,000 Shares, representing 9.67% of the issued Shares as
at 31 December 2016. The maximum number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to any
on Eligible Persons (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period share not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
The subscription price in respect of the any particular option shall
be price as the Board may in its discretion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price shall not
be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the nominal value
of a Share; (b) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’'s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and (c) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the grant
of a share option shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of the
Board approving the grant of the share options (the “Offer Date")
provided that no such grant of an option may be accepted after
the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An
option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company on or before the date upon which an offer of an option
must be accepted by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not
later than 28 days after the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company and any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New
Fortune (the "Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding
approximately 68.28% of the issued share capital of the Company,
and is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong
Luen Hei, and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and his family) has entered into a deed of non-competition in
favour of the Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”).
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DIRECTORS REPORT

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (Continued)

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted
by the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of
Non-Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness
of the non-competition undertakings. The independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of
Non-Competition. Based on the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholder, the independent non-executive directors are of the
view that the Deed of Non-Competition has been complied with and
has been effectively enforced.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 3 March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement |”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$135 million at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum with, among others, Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as mandated
lead arrangers, and a syndicate of nine lenders, for the purpose of
refinancing the Group’s existing financial indebtedness. The loan
made thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has been
made.

On 26 June 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement I1”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$155 million at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.20% per annum with a syndicate of three lenders,
independent licensed banks in Hong Kong, for general corporate
requirements (including the refinancing of the Group's existing
financial indebtedness). The loan made thereunder is repayable 42
months after the same has been made.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement | and Facility Agreement
Il (collectively the “Facility Agreements”), save for additional
requirement that Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his family (collectively,
the "Wong Family”) shall remain to have effective management
control over the Company set out in the Facility Agreement
I, the Facility Agreements require that the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 55% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 55% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a lender shall not be obliged to fund the loans made
under the Facility Agreements, and the total commitments under
the Facility Agreements may be liable to be cancelled and the
outstanding loans with interest and all other amounts accrued
under the Facility Agreements or other related financial documents
may be due and payable to the lenders immediately. The Facility
Agreements were settled on 20 January 2017.

On 11 August 2016, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-
owned subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) in relation to syndicated term loan facilities
in the amount of US$600 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus
1.85% per annum with syndicate lenders, independent financial
institutions, for general corporate requirements (including the
refinancing of the Group’s existing financial indebtedness). The loan
made thereunder is repayable 42 months after the same has been
made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family (collectively, the “Wong Family”) shall collectively maintain,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial shareholding
interest in the issued share capital of the Company, carrying at
least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise,
a lender shall not be obliged to fund the loan made under the
Facility Agreement, and the total commitments under the Facility
Agreement may be liable to be cancelled and the outstanding loan
with interest and all other amounts accrued under the Facility
Agreement or other related financial documents may be due and
payable to the lenders immediately.
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g

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 39
to consolidated financial statements also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions within the
meaning of the Listing Rules and satisfied relevant disclosure
requirements thereof. Details of the non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions are summarised
below:

(A)

60

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES

Background:

Nature of transactions:

On 30 December 2014, Guangdong
Liansu Technology (the “Lessee") entered
into lease agreement (the “Lease”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the
“Lessor"”) whereby the Lessor leased its
certain plants erected on Lot G03-2-1, Daba
Industrial Estate of Longjiang Community
Residents’ Committee, Longjiang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City, the PRC to
the Group for use as production facilities.

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the "“Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
30 December 2014.

Particulars of the agreements are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.
Reimbursement of utilities costs charged

by the relevant government authorities on
the Lessor from the Lessee.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued)

Terms:

Annual Cap
under the Lease:

Annual Cap
under Utilities
Arrangement:

Total consideration
for the year:

The Lease is for 36 months commencing
on 1 January 2015 and expiring on 31
December 2017. The related rents payable
by the Lessee to the Lessor is RMB368,419
per month.

The reimbursable amount of utilities costs
was equal to the amount charged by the
relevant government authorities on the
Lessor.

RMB4.4 million

RMB16 million (for the year ended
31 December 2016)
RMB18 million (for the year ending
31 December 2017)

RMB4.1 million (Lease)
RMB1.7 million (Utilities Arrangement)

PURCHASE OF MANUFACTURING EQUIPMENT

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

On 30 December 2014, the Company
entered into a master equipment purchase
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3
years commencing from 1 January 2015
and ending on 31 December 2017. For
details, please refer to the announcement
made by the Company on 30 December
2014,

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:

Purchase of manufacturing equipment from
Guangdong Liansu Machinery.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed any
quotation obtainable by the Group from
independent third parties.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) PURCHASE OF MANUFACTURING EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Annual Cap:

Total consideration for
the year:

RMB130 million (for the year ended 31
December 2016)
RMB140 million (for the year ending 31
December 2017)

RMB96.4 million

(C) PURCHASE OF ELECTRONIC ACCESSORIES

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration for
the year:

On 30 December 2014, the Company
entered into the original design
manufacturing (the “ODM") co-operation
agreement with Guangdong Liansu Electric
in relation to the ODM production co-
operation as regards manufacturing of
electronic accessories by Guangdong
Liansu Electric for the Group for 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2015 and
ending on 31 December 2017. For details,
please refer to the announcement made by
the Company on 30 December 2014.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of electronic accessories from
Guangdong Liansu Electric.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed any
quotation obtainable by the Group from
independent third parties.

RMB30 million (for the year ended 31
December 2016)
RMB40 million (for the year ending 31
December 2017)

RMB13,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(D)
Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total factoring facility
principal utilised for
the agreement period:

Outstanding balance
of the factoring facility
at the end
of the year:

FACTORING SERVICES

On 8 December 2015, Shenzhen Qianhai
Lesso entered into the master factoring
agreement with Guangdong Liansu Electric,
pursuant to which Shenzhen Qianhai
Lesso shall provide Guangdong Liansu
Electric with factoring facilities of not
exceeding RMB200 million. The term of the
agreement is one year, taking effect from 8
December 2015 to 7 December 2016. For
details, please refer to the announcement
made by the Company on 8 December
2015.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Provision of factoring services to Guangdong
Liansu Electric.

The factoring amount carries monthly
interest rate of 0.3625% plus monthly
service fee of 0.6375% of each individual

factoring facility.

Factoring facility principal amount of not
exceeding RMB200 million.

RMB45 million

Nil

Details of the financial service income from factoring services are
disclosed in note 39 to consolidated financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions
during the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company's auditor issued an unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the said letter to the
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 39 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the
Company and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the public float
stipulated in the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED BE - HEIEELHES

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors believed that RE £2016F12A831BILFE - EERAKEM
such repurchases of the Company's listed securities were benefit AATZ FHEEIFEEARARTRKEZ Mz -
the Company and the Shareholders, save as set out below, the B FXXETit&E N - KA T sk HAE KB A T &
Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem & - HESBE LT AA RN EHES :

any of the Company’s listed securities:

Number of Aggregate
Shares Highest price Lowest price consideration
Trading Date repurchased paid per Share paid per Share paid
eft g1t
EEmE BRRG BRER G g2
XS BH KRB EHE REER RIEER BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
A& TT AT BT
23 March 2016 3,000,000 4.30 4.21 12,811,959
201643 H23H
24 March 2016 2,000,000 4.21 413 8,376,820
20163 A24H
29 March 2016 337,000 4.05 4.02 1,357,470
201693 H29H
30 March 2016 1,700,000 4.09 4.07 6,949,819
201643 H30H
31 March 2016 800,000 4.18 412 3,319,691
201653 H31H
Total 7,837,000 32,815,759
#Et
AUDITOR BB

A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 AGM to re- appoint Ernst AR TR 2017FRFRBAFRE LRERER

& Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 6 March 2017

VAR 2ok & SR S 15 P /S AN X B] VAL BRED

AEEGD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 EENHRE

EY::

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Lesso Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “"Group”) set out on pages 74 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

FREZEE)

BPCRBIT T ANME LG FE A& B
KAEMNE TR MR EE - BREEEERHR
EREHMEENEMT - HER  RANEZRT
FRERTRAEBHFENGEMBHRRENER
RO B T AT OB ARAR Fr » RIPIMITRIZIRFF
MER  BRESE NEBREXZFHEMNITHRE
Fr REAVBBRRBREREZEREHRTAE
B o

Key audit matters
BREZSBE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

MEHEARERER

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables

B S B IR K15 A6 B

At 31 December 2016, the Group had trade and bills receivables
of RMB1,517,248,000, net of provision for impairment of
RMB121,030,000, which accounted for 6.8% of the total assets.
R20165F12A318 - EXEESRUREREREAEAARE
1,5617,248,0007T - % BREE R HRIEER # A K%121,030,0007T
2Bz (hWHEEEREMEENG8% °

The determination as to whether a trade and bills receivable is
impaired involves significant management judgement. Specific
factors which management would consider include the age of
the balance, existence of disputes, past collection history and
any other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of the counterparty. Management uses such information to
determine whether any objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for trade and bills receivables that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for trade and bills
receivables that are not individually significant.
ETESRWHEREERGRESREXNEIEE AL - AL
HAEPEERNER  SAFEAD  BEEFBEIREMERE
PEABREMERZER BEEREFRALMESLATEREX
WESHREKEREBRRESEFETE RS - LEFNHRATE
FEHBEBANEGRIEFRELREEREREFESTERE -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 24.
RERE SRR ANMAEBEEHRWT2.4 - 3Kk24

Our audit procedures included among others:

BB ZIEF2E(ETRR)

i) Tested controls over the Group's
receivables collection processes;

B B £ B P R TE MR O I

i) Evaluated the Group's assessment of the
provision for impairment at the end of
each reporting period;

AR mEAREREARERERTE

i) Challenged management on the significant
estimation and subjectivity involved
in relation to the appropriateness of
impairment which included obtaining
evidence to support the recoverability of
the long overdue receivables;
BEEEBREBIRERG AT REBEEN
BERENGEL AR aREESEHEK
FOAR] EUIE YRR

iv)  Obtained direct external confirmations
for a sample of trade and bills receivable
balances; and
HE FHEWFIERBERBRBEEREEIN
BB K&

v) Examined post year end cash receipts
for a sample of year-end trade and bills
receivable balances.

MEREFRE HRYGIERZERENF
RIEOEFRIER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AZBEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FEEEZEEE)

Key audit matters

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

MTEHEARERER

Provision for impairment of inventories

7R IER

At 31 December 2016, the Group had inventories of
RMB2,747,065,000, net of provision for impairment of
RMB142,237,000, which accounted for 12.4% of the total
assets. The provision for impairment mainly related to certain
obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused on this
area because inventories are material to the Group and the
provision for impairment of inventories involves a high level of
management’s judgement and estimates.

R2016F12A31H  EXEFEREERAK2,747,065,000
T ZEREERMBRREREAR®142,237,0007T 2 18 2 #7580 -
HREEREEN124% ZREREEZZENE TRERBHET
HIER - BMEHATZEERHNFEYRESEEANAETFER
BEREEIRREEERE B> -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.
RERE M EHREANMAEBREEHRWE2.4 - 3K22

We evaluated, amongst others, the analyses
and assessments made by management
with respect to obsolete and slow-moving
inventories, including market values and
expected selling prices of the related
inventories and the Group’'s future plan of
usage or sale. We assessed the reliability of
the underlying data used by management in
calculating the inventory provisions such as the
inventory ageing reports, by re-performing the
ageing calculation generated by the system.
We also tested the accuracy of management’s
calculation by assessing the calculation criteria
and recalculating the provision. In addition, we
evaluated, based on a sample of inventories, the
analyses performed by management regarding
the net realisable values of the inventories.

BMZER(APEE) BEEERBRRFHETFEE
ER AR - BEEBFENTENERE
BUAREEBOARKBEHHETE - HFIFHE
EEERGHEFERBRATARBAZR(WFER
RHE) WA EN - ARARENNITHRSMEN
RECETHE - KM ME BTG EEENENGHE
BiE - ASHERETTEOERM ot - IR
BHERAER  STHEEBYGEERERFEME

TTEVDAT »
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FRFZEEE

Key audit matters

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

MEHEARERER

Valuation of investment properties

KEYZEAE

At 31 December 2016, the Group had investment properties
of RMB2,469,488,000, which represented 11.1% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties is important to our audit as it represents
a significant judgement area and an important part of the total
assets of the Group. Management employed independent
qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The valuation of
the investment properties is highly dependent on a range of
estimates made by management.

R2016F12H31H EEEREVEREEARARE
2,496,488,0007C ' (h#EEREEN11.1% W IR AR BEE °
EEEA&E%%Wﬁiﬁ&iﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁﬁxl%@ﬁ?ﬁ’]i% 4K
Hoy  ZIEEHBRMEZZEER -  BEEBRELREERNMW
Tﬁﬁﬂi.ﬂﬁ“ﬂﬁfﬁ KREMEHESEEENEIREELRHETE
B o

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.
RERE SRR ANNEBEESRWE2.4 - 3K%14°

Amongst others, we considered the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the professional
valuers. We also assessed the correctness
of the property related data, which had been
used as input for the valuations, and involved
our internal specialists to assist us in analysing
the valuations and challenging the underlying
assumptions, such as the appropriateness of
comparable lands under the sales comparison
approach. We further focused on the adequacy
and appropriateness of the disclosures
relating to the valuations of these investment
properties.
BAZR(ATEFB)EXEHEMOTENL B
MMEZEMN - HATTEEEYEGEZHENE
Wi WEAATERBERMS TEBEBERN
EEMHERRE  EAESHEAETAIELR
T EERNEEN RFIE - PRTEZERE
MEMBEEBOHERNTDOUETEE M -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AZBEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BB RBERREMBHRRARNEE

BFNER  RHSRAVBHRRABEBES TR
BAEEFRERMEBMNEABRBARE A E
RiE - WHABRBEMERNZBERS - HM
EHZREABELRE B ARELE
HA sk o BT SR8 R E AR B ER
H AT 8 Pk EEREE -
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EREAETNESR  EX -BEXBERRATHE
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I RRAE R E KBRS PIERRIEL O
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ERBESEZENETERNBIET - HIFIE
RTEEHE - REFTERIEREE - BT

o EBRIMFFE R FF IR MG EERE M5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR GRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

/2
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kin Yu.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

6 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SGEEmNEMZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZ20165F12A31HILFE

2016 2015
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Wik AR®T R ARETT
REVENUE A 5 17,221,052 15,264,401
Cost of sales HEKA (12,639,274) (11,326,830)
Gross profit E7 4,581,778 3,937,671
Other revenue, income and gains HAUA ~ Wes R A& 5 138,021 119,927
Selling and distribution expenses HENDEEY (821,557) (697,214)
Administrative expenses THRX (758,583) (579,132)
Other expenses Hibf% (608,619) (630,259)
Finance costs BEMAK 6 (107,061) (87,323)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—EEECERT 17 813 1,101
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR A 7 2,424,792 2,064,671
Income tax expense FERAY 9 (511,088) (446,221)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRiEF 1,913,704 1,618,450
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)  HttZ2EWE /(B%)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to BT EnEEERRN
profit or loss: BE :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ENEBRREEN
operations EHERE (113,554) (50,973)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHERENAEE
investments HE) 24,236 1,777
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FREMZE
FOR THE YEAR X (89,318) (49,196)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR E£RZ2HEWESAE 1,824,386 1,569,254
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2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
WiE ARETR AREFT
Profit attributable to: PAT (G R -
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 1,922,027 1,621,117
Non-controlling interests el (8,323) (2,667)
1,913,704 1,618,450
Total comprehensive income PTG 2 ERE
attributable to: 1B
Owners of the Company /NI PN 1,827,904 1,570,682
Non-controlling interests FEE R (3,518) (1,428)
1,824,386 1,569,254
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO NSk 2PN 3
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EREF 1
Basic and diluted EAREE RMBO0.62 RMBO0.52
AE#0.627 AR¥0.527T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBARRR

As at 31 December 2016
R2016F12 A31H

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
= AR¥T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BE RERE 12 6,621,953 6,011,812
Prepaid land lease payments B L ER 13 1,249,367 1,157,926
Investment properties REME 14 2,469,488 318,431
Goodwill Bk 15 76,554 -
Other intangible assets EmEREE 15 183,615 35,790
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BE+ih W% BMERSEE
property, plant and equipment T Rz S 549,919 745,175
Interest in a joint venture R—EeEtENER 17 7,988 7,175
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 18 730,814 48,363
Held-to-maturity investments BEEEDEEE 19 59,655 62,435
Loan receivables A TR 20 63,191 -
Other long-term receivables H fth = HB e W R 37,623 -
Derivative financial instruments TEESRIEA 21 32,566 -
Deferred tax assets ELHIBEE 30 53,869 29,724
Total non-current assets FERBEERTE 12,136,602 8,416,831
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 2,747,065 2,206,543
Amounts due from customers for EWEEHELHTIRE
contract work IR 23 163,279 -
Loan receivables JE I & 3R 20 325,764 83,000
Trade and bills receivables B RGN EE 24 1,517,248 1,397,797
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TE[3X - 54 [ H e o 78 25 1,419,645 651,408
Cash and bank deposits B RIBITEFER 26 3,885,683 3,893,544
Total current assets ME)EEBE 10,058,684 8,232,292
CURRENT LIABILITIES TBAE
Amounts due to customers for contract work BN EFHE L TRIIE 23 40,049 -
Trade and bills payables EC S 27 3,603,162 1,681,582
Other payables and accruals HiE AR ETER 28 1,731,570 1,625,902
Borrowings RN 29 4,252,154 1,065,502
Tax payable FERTTEIR 94,957 104,562
Total current liabilities R R EEE 9,721,892 4,377,548
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 336,792 3,854,744
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEZERADAR 12,473,394 12,271,575
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ES b =R
Borrowings BN 29 442,407 2,175,238
Other long-term payables H iR AR 0B 106,439 -
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIBRE 30 272,568 136,653
Deferred income BN & 31 114,308 94,232
Total non-current liabilities ERBAERRE 935,722 2,406,123
Net assets BEEFH 11,537,672 9,865,452
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2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥TR AREFT

EQUITY &
Share capital fig A 32 135,344 135,686
Reserves i 33 11,096,165 9,635,199
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A EHES AEGIEZ 11,231,509 9,770,885
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 306,163 94,567
Total equity Ly ] 11,537,672 9,865,452

Wong Luen Hei
EHE
Director

EBEF

Luo Jianfeng

mElE

Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARBRARE
Available-
for-sale
investment  Exchange Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Capital  Merger revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve®  reserve®  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits Total  interests equity
fttE
Re  RHEE iEREY ERBREY  SHEE REEGEE EIRBEE  REW B FENER  BREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTn ARETR ARMTn ARETn ARMTz ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARMTR
At 1 January 2015 HM0EIR1E 130,680 1922887 94349 31,645 551 202 1486 5484524 8545459 4264 8,549,723
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - - 1BNNT BT (2667 1618430
Other comprehensive expense Epit
for the year 2R - - - - - @Y - 043 123 (4919
Total comprehensive income En2Eks
for the year g - - - - - 177 B2 1621117 1,570,682 (1428 1,569,264
Capital contrbutons from FcliER
non-controling interests ik - - - - - - - - - 13 13
Noncontroling interests arising from ~ £T5A B £
businss combinations En - - - - - - - - - 65,323 65,323
Acquisitons of non-controling interests  AEE3E bl - - - (B3%) - - - - B3 383% -
Dividends recognised as distributions B2 BREG AA R
to owners fnote 10) R (RiE10) - - - - - - - 18861 (318861) - 386
Appropriation 1o statutory reserve BEDITRE - - MNe - - - - 3218 - - -
At 31 December 2015 and N0sENANAR
1 January 2016 WIBE1ATH 135,686 192887 1,156,712 b,250° b 515 1999 (30.726F 6573562 9,770,885 94,567 9,805,452
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - 18200 190207 BRI 1,913,704
Other comprehensive expense ERLf
for the year 2ERY - - - - - 2423 (118359) - 4806 (8931
Total comprehgnsive income FREENE
for the year 8 - - - - - 1236 (118389 1922027 1827904 [3,518) 1,824,386
Capital contrbutions from FiaslEs
non-controlling interests HE - - - - - - - - - 107528 107,528
Noncontroling interests arising from £ AHEEEEEH
business combinations note 38) 1 (HE35) - - - - - - - - - 107586 107586
Shares repurchased note 32 BRI (FE32) (342 (17,2891 - - - - - (10441 (28,05 - (8052
Dividends recognised as distributions ~ EZEREEANE
10 owners fnote 10] fia () - - - - - - - 33928 1339,228 - (33928
Aopropriation to statutory reserve ERRITRE - - 2313 - - - - (233139) - - -
At 31 December 2016 #2016%12A31A 135,344 1,905,618° 1,389,851* 5,250° 5515°  26,235% (149,085 7912781F 11231509 306,163 11,537,672
# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB11,096,165,000 (2015:  * ZERBEBABAVERREAREARE

RMB9,635,199,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Note:

(a)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the Company’'s
subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to
the statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

AT -

(b)

RIERE A BE - AR R B M A S R B A RZA
BBBREPHARG T RAUEECHFEETHREREER
(EHREABAFEBER)NI0%ELTHE  HEE
HECHEBESEFMERNS0% BIE - EEFEE A
PEEBAEFEEBIILE  WETHEBENR TEHRT
FORFMERN25% ©

ARFREERIEA MUK SRR m A R E R TR
BFEERAEIMNER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Btz ARET R ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KeEH
Profit before tax: BEADE R - 2,424,792 2,064,671
Adjustments for: BATEIBELHE -
Interest income R 5 (61,591) (82,248)
Government grants released ERARNBHE (1,905) (1,431)
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties ~ BEWE A EBEHH 5 (31,885) (55)
Gain on fair value changes of derivative TEERIANABES
financial instruments Mz 5 (1,942) -
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity REBEEBAEZHH
investments REMGENR 5 (2086) -
Investment income BB 5 (5,781) (2,426)
Interest expenses FEHY 6 107,061 87,323
Depreciation and amortisation e R 7 593,366 501,115
Loss on disposal of items of HEE B & EA
other intangible assets and property, MmE - BE KA
plant and equipment BEREE 7 7,309 12,357
Write-down of inventories to WHEEE
net realisable value, net ERFETHE 7 50,445 48,564
Impairment of trade receivables, net g SN ERE SR 7 30,227 43,577
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BB REFERE 7 15,467 379
Share of profit of a joint venture AE—EAELERF 17 (813) (1,101)
3,124,544 2,670,725
Increase in other long-term receivables Hio R B R GURE (6,718) -
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BEEEN ,/w (584,597) 814
Increase in amounts due from customers for FEUEFPHAHIRIE
contract work 2 (99,394) -
Increase in loan receivables JEUAEFRIE N (305,955) (83,000)
Increase in trade and bills receivables EU) LGN ES: Syl (69,434) (22,580)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and T[T « &4 RE e ZIE
other receivables () /mo (595,385) 70,603
Increase in amounts due to customers for ENEEHA4TIIEFE
contract work 0 14,661 -
Increase in trade and bills payables B SENTBREREM 1,847,009 630,265
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and Hib M TR R ET B RN/
accruals (AD) 8,573 (85,326)
Increase in other long-term payables Hit R E B FOEE M 10,000 -
Increase in deferred income EEWESIEM 21,981 25,351
Cash generated from operations TBEEENER S 3,365,285 3,206,852
Bank interest received BUERTTFIS 55,391 72,421
Corporate income tax paid BEREEMER (456,408) (402,289)
Net cash flows from operating activities e EDMERLREFE 2,964,268 2,876,984
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2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Btz AR®T R ARETL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment FEEYE - MEMREEE (1,066,984) (1,032,456)
Proceeds from disposal of items of REMEEMBREERN
other intangible assets and property, ME - BELREREN
plant and equipment PR HIE 8,767 6,922
Additions to prepaid land lease payments BT A EFEM (115,112) (201,771)
Additions to investment properties HEYEEN (1,810,124) (235,928)
Additions to other intangible assets HimpEEmLmn (2,658) (12,067)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BERAZRIBRE - (28,909)
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity BEREHEEDH
investments Frg50E = 31,767
Proceeds from early redemption of REERRBAZIBRE
held-to-maturity investments 578 6,970
Interest received from held-to-maturity investments Eﬂﬁl%ﬁiiﬂ HRERF 2 6,286 8,443
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEUHRNERE (649,197 (5,125)
Purchases of derivative financial instruments BEMESRTIA (29,211) -
Investment income received BUIE & W 5,781 2,426
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B A A 35 (183,745) (56,186)
Withdrawal of time deposits with original maturity RETHER(REHR
over three months BB=A) = 85,060
Increase in restricted cash ZBHIHEEEM (177,192) (55,195)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZEMARERETE (4,006,419) (1,493,019)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEEE
New bank borrowings raised FERITIER 2,802,008 1,303,011
Repayment of bank and other loans EBEBIREMER (1,565,154) (1,642,843)
Loans from non-controlling interests JEIE R E T 12,000 62,097
Repayment of loans from non-controlling interests ~ (BEIFILHIEFER (61,617) -
Payment for repurchase of shares, including expenses % fEERHFE(BERY) (28,052) -
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests  JEiRHI#Ez HE 107,528 13
Interest paid ENFIE (97,434) (77,800)
Dividends paid BTRRE (339,228) (318,861)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities RETEME/ (R BLHETFE 830,051 (674,383)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND BERBLEEBYORD), /i
CASH EQUIVALENTS FH (212,100) 709,582
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ FHIHNRE LIELZEY 3,255,511 2,531,004
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEE RS EME L FH 27,047 14,925
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FANRERRS
THE YEAR EAL) 3,070,458 3,255,511
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRESENN
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3Nt
Time deposits with original maturity of EHER(REHRA
three months or less when acquired ZfEAUT) 26 238,570 370,054
Cash and bank balances B RFITHER 26 2,831,888 2,885,457
3,070,458 3,255,511
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra M B RARMEE

2.1

82

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The addresses of its registered office
and principal places of business are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and its joint venture
are set out in notes 42 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, certain available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

84

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
standards for the first time for the current year's consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012 - 2014 Cycle

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

The application of these new and revised standards in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and position for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS4
Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sales or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Mandatory effective date not yet determined

2w oN =

Other than as further explained below, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of the new and revised HKFRs
above will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the disclosure.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. In July 2015, the HKICPA confirmed a one-
year deferral of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to
1 January 2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1
January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
15 upon adoption.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’'s interest
in the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in joint ventures.

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION (Continued)
The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

2.4 TESHTBEME@®)

\EREK R (E)
AEERER G EEH 2 EDER -

s HEE BEIMEEMNHARKEZE
s HE{E BEMEEMARELZZA
%E%é%%%@TEEﬁZFﬂ%W
EREEBELZBIERA + &

s HMX BESEEMARELZHR
%o

AEERALEB R ZEWEE A
& WARFAXTREEANEEEE - 8
& WARFAX 2 EBHERELEIAR

EBEHREE

EBEHTIABEEANR - EEZRETIA
WEBHNAREEFE  Z2ABERAE
SEEENEERNKERRNAAEER K
SEBERWES ZAERE AAENRE
Ko AN 6 21T DARR ER AR U B8 07 4% il R M AR
BB - REXBEGT  AEERE
ERURA R BEIBEETT B EEFE
MBIEELD] - SHERBEE L BIRES A2
RRYETEREABRRBRERLD
EEBNFEEMIFE S - JFHEHI#R
M — IR D TR AR BEE - KB
BARARELRIIRFAX -

Annual Report 2016 5 87



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR B SRR TR

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract asset, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

92

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control of the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated
2.3% t0 5%
9% to 19%
9.5% t0 32.3%

9.5% t0 32.3%
Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other
assets under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL) (Continued)
Brand name and operating concession rights

Brand name and operating concession rights with indefinite
useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such an asset
should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite should be accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount (a) annually, and
(b) whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

LEASES

Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and
initial direct costs is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as loan receivables. Any unguaranteed
residual value is also recognised at the inception of the lease.
The difference between the sum of the minimum lease
payment receivables, initial direct costs, the unguaranteed
residual value and their present value is recognised as
unearned finance income. Unearned finance income is
recognised over the period of the lease using the effective
interest rate method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The subsequent measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their
classification.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument
or financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income or expense is recognised on an effective
interest method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial assets are either held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) loans and
receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are

recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. "Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of
the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase
in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss when the financial liabilities are
either held for trading or they are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of cash management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

2.4 TESTHREME@®)

Frig i (4)
BEREEETRAE A MM ERER - K
BATARRMERABARBERNGEE
R o fii B R IR AT BE A MERR Bt A1) A] (A48
HAHIME R Z8 - RPAHAE LR
BANEERNGE  ASERELCHEE
2= - HETSIBRERID -

s HXRSBIEEGIIRNNERT G
MABENIEXBEHZ T - 15
EREEXAEREELETMRER
EZRAMNEERREE K&

e HEARNBARE-—HALEREMNE
EREBMANREREZEREMS - BT
MBEEENEREZANARERE
F] e [ B FE AR B0 A A8 7] A DA 3K
EREREOBERT - 7 THER -

ELEREEENRAER SRS ARIELR
A WENBARAERBGENAREHEE
B E D RLETHIEE ER T AR - REER
MEEHRAEESR S WMERENTE
I AT B2 B S8 AR Ak 1) LA W 120 2 B 5 AP
DIRETRIRE R T IAMER -

EXEREEERBENEBRERNERE
EFRBEHPRAVERGTE - WAREH
REETREERATORE (RFE) BE

#

BERETRIBEER EREHIBERERE - B
BEERARNRHRIEEERHENHER
BEEORITEIEERN - RIRERIBAS MF
— RN B KRB HEE -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) contract revenue from the renovation and installation
work on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy “Construction
contracts” below;

(c) income from financial services includes handling
fee income from factoring services and supply-chain
financing services, finance lease income and related
interest income:

(i) handling fee income from factoring services and
supply-chain financing services, when the relevant
services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income, over the period of lease, as
further explained in the accounting policy “Leases”
above;

(iii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method as explained in note (f).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(d) income from environmental engineering and related
services includes environmental construction work,
sewage treatment and related services.

(i)  contract revenue from environmental construction
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy “Construction
contracts” below;

(i) income from sewage, hazardous wastes treatment
and related environmental protection services,
when the relevant services have been rendered.

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue from a fixed price
construction contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is probably recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

24 FEE

TR E (#)

WA TR (&)

(d KERRIEMEEREERERER
BITRER - I5/KEE RAEREH
Yz

(i) Iai“lffiﬁ_?&é,ﬁﬂﬂl)\iﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁ
tlﬁ%+ u/u ’ uﬂz—‘ EATYEI n‘l’
BER [ ITRaRIN@E

(i) 57K - kR mpE I RARRIRR
PR 755 Uk i 2 17 A R AR A5 4R L By

=7
s °©

(e) M&UWaIRHERANR ML ALK

(f) ﬂ LI& J//(an-l'g’gﬁﬁ,\%ﬁj—'—/iA
R IERAMEREB T ANMEA
FAE B (B Bif (R A ) ) i b st
ARREBAERFTREESREED
REFE &

(9) BBMRERR IR AU IR ARR ©

IREH
BRHRABREREANEBENMKREERA
# EE%&%%ZLEE&%%E s BELAKHIK
REEERDH - DERAX E%WIL‘A&
*:*EJJ&I;EI&F'EJ&EXKE’JJWH*E

M ITI2EAMAERER SEEE - RBETE
BRIREEHNNEGHOBACATKRAED LS
if@u/u E%%%%I%EE@ Eﬁimmﬁﬁkzﬁ

HEBANMT AR L E - ikt
WARKTIRFTAFEEREFIRIN - EHTIZH
HE  BRLESASESREMA S
ERRBRAUBBKPBRZEFSENERTTEA
BE o

W TIER AR SEET 8 - AHW
ANENFTREKREINEELS ’JEXZIK*B o e
R BHRARELREER R



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as amounts due from customers for contract work.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for contract
work.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group's employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in
the countries in which the Group operates. Payments to
these plans, where the Group's obligations under them are
equivalent to a defined contribution plan, are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Share option scheme

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options is recognised as an expense and
credited to share option reserve under equity. For grant of
share options, the total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date on which they are granted by using a
binomial model, excluding the impact of any service condition
and non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become vested.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the Group's profit or loss
and makes a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period. When the options are exercised, the
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (at nominal value) and share
premium.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meetings. Interim
dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared
and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’'s functional currency is HK dollar while the
Company's presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on
certain profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated
and distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and such temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the
PRC are considered to be repatriated and distributed by way
of dividends, the deferred income tax charge and deferred
income tax liability would have increased by the same amount
of approximately RMB263,925,000 (2015: RMB253,821,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and operating
concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives
are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill, brand name and operating concession
rights are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimation of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. At the end of the reporting
period, the carrying amount of goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights were RMB76,554,000 (2015: Nil),
RMB110,520,000 (2015:Nil) and RMB24,550,000 (2015: Nil),
respectively. Further details are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aged
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of the Group's
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional impairment may be
required. At the end of the reporting period, an accumulated
impairment loss of RMB121,030,000 (2015: RMB81,077,000)
has been recognised for trade receivables.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

118

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the aged analysis of its inventories at
the end of each reporting period, and makes provision for
obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use/sale. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. At
the end of the reporting period, an accumulated provision for
obsolescence of RMB142,237,000 (2015: RMB91,792,000)
has been recognised for inventories.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, management determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgement, management considers information from a
variety of sources, including (i) independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition and location (or subject to different leases
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (iii)
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices;
(iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of building materials and interior decoration products; the
provision of renovation and installation works, environmental
engineering and other related services and financial services.
For management purposes, the Group's businesses are
organised by geographical areas based on the location of the
customers and assets are attributable to the geographical
unit based on the location of the assets. The Group has eight
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province
and Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu
Province and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that changes in fair value
of investment properties, changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments, exchange differences, finance costs,
interest income, gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity
investments, investment income, share of result of a joint
venture and other unallocated income and expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interest in a joint venture, available-
for-sale investments, held-to-maturity investments, derivative
financial instruments, deferred tax assets, cash and bank
deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from
its operations in the mainland China, special administrative
regions of the PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no

revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. &E&Zo3PER (@A)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR HZEZ2016F12B83MBLFENEE D
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 &%
Southern  Southwestern Central Eastern Northern Northwestern  Northeastern Outside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations Consolidated
E4] FEE #m 5 314 FLHE REHE HEESH i | &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Segment revenue: ABRA:
Sales to external customers NPRPHE 10,082,151 1,561,330 1,712,343 1,064,953 1,052,288 562,002 371,154 535,436 - 16,941,657
Intersegment sales PEHHE 2,397,464 360,909 441,075 133,941 167,401 109,249 94,902 591,967 (4,296,908) -
12,479,615 1,922,239 2,153,418 1,198,894 1,219,689 671,251 466,056 1,121,403 (4,296,908) 16,941,657
Contract revenue from renovation  £BRZETE
and installation works AHBA 118,180 - 881 - - - 382 - - 119,443
Income from environmental RRIEREMAE
engineering and other related i diey
services 81,161 10,779 794 1728 21,99 8,922 532 - - 133,054
Financial service income SRRESE 26,398 - - - - - - - - 26,898
Total At 12,705,854 1,933,018 2,162,240 1,200,622 1,241,680 680,173 466,970 1,127,403 (4,296,908) 17,221,052
Segment results PREE 3,349,344 534,107 626,430 239,738 325,786 143,524 99,788 86,290 (823,229) 4,581,778
Reconciliations: 4%
Gain on fair value changes of &é%%m
investment properties )% 31,885
(Gain on fair value changes of @TE%E@I&M
derivative financial instruments — BEEEFJE 1,982
Exchange loss EXFE (17,614)
Finance costs BERK (107,061)
Interest income iV ey 61,591
Gain on early redemption of held-  EEEEHFZHE
to-maturity investments RERBYE 206
Investment income REUS 5,781
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ HfE—HALAEET 813
Unallocated income and expenses & AEMERET (2,134,529)
Profit before tax BRET 2,424,792
Segment assets PHEE 9,850,734 1,140,731 1,048,774 867,512 726,365 581,190 420,668 2,788,731 - 17,441
Reconciliations: 4%
Interest in a joint venture n-HaELENER 7,988
Available-for-sale investments /METE & 730,814
Held-to-maturity investments BEIERE 59,655
Derivative financial instruments ﬁié%ﬂlﬁ 32,566
Deferred tax assets ERENEEE 53,869
Cash and bank deposits BERENER 3,885,683
Total assets EESE 22,195,286
Other segment information: HEHABER:
Depreciation and amortisation RERES ﬁ 321,449 57,461 64,224 40,383 36,858 37,202 22,49 13,540 - 593,366
Write-down of inventories to HAREEIER
net realisable value, net FEEE 21,693 365 431 4,361 L] (121) 10,730 12,908 - 50,445
Impairment of trade receivables, net & 5 MEE A (E 5 30,087 - 274 - 1,086 - (1,675) 455 - 30,227
Impairment of property, 0% BEREE
plant and equipment i - - - 15,467 - - - - - 15,467
Capital expenditure* ERRY 1,658,042 121,701 42,506 76,731 45,807 23,588 24,642 1,597,381 (20,900) 3,569,498
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and ¢ BRRSZBEABEYE  WEKZE - B L
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and HER RAVERHAMELEE -
other intangible assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

B 2

4, REHTER (@)

BZ2015F12A31B L EENEE I HBER

equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and
other intangible assets.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

HER

REMERAMBLEE -

Southem  Southwestern Central Easten Northern ~ Northwestern ~ Northeastern QOutside
China China China China China China China China ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
g FEE B E3 514 FElLiR RitBE HEES i &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Segment revenue: ABRA:
Sales to external customers NEBRPHE 9,046,199 1,386,118 1,576,233 838,664 976,207 601,410 320,49 453,082 - 15198409
Intersegment sales THEEE 1,899,833 272,862 351,981 87,818 120,655 105,044 80,778 504,905 (3,423,876) -
10,946,032 1,668,980 1928214 926,482 1,096,862 706,454 401,274 957,987 (3423876) 15,198,409
Contract revenue from renovation  EERZEIR
and installation works ANRA 64,497 - - - - - - - - 64,497
Financial service income Eaiye 149 - - - - - - - - 1495
Total At 11,012,024 1,668,980 1928214 926,482 1,096,862 706,454 401,274 957,987 (3,423876) 15,264,401
Segment results PPEE 2,833,026 419,184 580,776 199,592 269,017 132,559 70,040 72,002 (638,625) 3,937,571
Reconciliations: H
Gain on fair value changes of RENENLEEEY
investment properties bk 55
Exchange loss 307 (114,516)
Finance costs BERK 87,323)
Interest income gl 82,248
Investment income REhE 2,426
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ HfE—HALALER 1,101
Unallocated income and expenses A ABMERER (1,756,891)
Profit before tax RHtaER 2,064,671
Segment assets PUEE 7317952 974,045 1,046,339 805,163 634,496 566,085 443,009 820,793 - 12,607,882
Reconciliations: i
Interest in a joint venture R-HABLENER 1175
Available-for-sale investments MEERE 48,363
Held-to-maturity investments EERIMRE 62,435
Deferred tax assets ERENEEE 29,724
Cash and bank deposits RERBOER 3,893,544
Total assets EESE 16,649,123
Other segment information: i3 H&H :
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 267,173 51,828 63,675 29,069 29,453 37,061 16,225 7,631 - 501,115
Write-down of inventories tonet ~ EFSZA%%E
realisable value, net 38 41,208 - 1,161 641 3,961 573 1,601 (581) - 48,564
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 5 EWFUEREFE 8,194 - 5,456 - 161 923 23110 5,733 - 43577
Impairment of property, plant, N BERE
and equipment i - - - - - - - 379 - 379
Capital expenditure* Uy 763,250 112,167 74,645 230,291 140,617 207 2,083 337,061 (24,980) 1,657,341
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # EEAREZBRENEDE  WENLRE BN



5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other revenue, income
and gains is as follows:

WA~ HABA - g R A=

REEAUA - AU - a5 BRI I
m -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARMEFIT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEE R 16,941,657 15,198,409
Contract revenue from renovation and HERZETR
installation works BHBA 119,443 64,497
Income from environmental engineering and IRIZET 12 N E 485
other related services PR 75 U 25 133,054 -
Financial service income & R RIS W s 26,898 1,495
17,221,052 15,264,401
Other revenue, income and gains HipWA - s K Fli
Bank interest income RITH Bl E 55,391 72,421
Interest income from held-to-maturity BEEZEEHIRER
investments FlE U zs 6,200 9,827
Total interest income R B S B EE 61,591 82,248
Government grants and subsidies T 7 B I 1 B 16,118 20,110
Gain on fair value changes of investment HEMERREE
properties Fa)Fz 31,885 55
Gain on fair value changes of MEsMIARAREE
derivative financial instruments HE)H = 1,942 -
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity 122 EHE E 3 HEE
investments Fri5Fz 206 -
Investment income "E Wz 5,781 2,426
Others Hip 20,498 15,088
138,021 119,927

Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding
received from government authorities to support certain of
the Group's research and development activities. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants
and subsidies.

BT 8 B B 4 B = R AR BUR B X T A2
BAKEE THHEHNES - WHEEMH
ZERB LA BB R ER IR RHEE
e
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FINANCE COSTS 6. BMERAK
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Interest expenses on bank and other loans  $R{TREAMERHIF S8 108,781 87,733
Less: Interest capitalised B BERMEF A (1,720) (410)
107,061 87,323

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BRBALER

AEBOBE RS TEMGR,(GEA) T

(crediting): BIEBEY :
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
it & AR¥TR ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold BEFENRAN 12,413,090 11,225,023
Direct cost of renovation and installation works $5& & Ze 8 Ti2 B A AR 105,569 53,243
Direct cost of environmental engineering and  3RIBTIE R HMEH
other related services RIS E A 70,170 -
Depreciation e 12 553,375 467,004
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TA T b & R 13 25,227 22,362
Amortisation of other intangible assets Himp EE#H 15 14,764 11,749
Total depreciation and amortisation FER#HEE 593,366 501,115
Research and development costs* TiFf 3% Al AR 514,024 447,346
Loss on disposal of items of HEEMEPEEMN
other intangible assets and property, ME - WENREEE
plant and equipment HEE 7,309 12,357
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFLEHER
leases in respect of land and buildings HEES 40,794 32,419
Auditor's remuneration =R 5,665 4,598
Employee benefit expense (including EERMAZ(BEE
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): =S (fT3E8)) -
Wages and salaries ITERF® 574,465 531,821
Pension scheme contributions RIRSETEIM R 59,449 47,781
Staff welfare and other expenses SBIRMNEEMESX 53,973 43,899
687,887 623,501
Write-down of inventories to net realisable WRFEZMNER
value, net SHEFE 50,445 48,564
Impairment of trade receivables, net* B 5 e W SR B SRR 30,227 43,577
Impairment of property, plant and equipment*  #% - B MR ERE" 12 15,467 379
Changes in fair value of investment properties & EME AL BEZE 14 (31,885) (55)
Changes in fair value of derivative financial TESRIAAREE
instruments ) (1,942) -
Net rental income e s 55 (1,170) (1,434)
Foreign exchange differences, net" b 5 = B FRae 17,614 114,516
# These items are included in the “other expenses” in profit or loss. * ZEBERINEBRAIEMRES ] -

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T




8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFyMERIEEESTMES

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) ESHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEER FTREREE R TR
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BZENEZHMEHIWOT -

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFT
Fees e 3,089 2,829
Other emoluments: E A ETEN

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 EELREWRER 4,756 4,558
Performance related bonuses RIFBMRTEAL 5,040 3,315
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT BT 313 257
10,109 8,130
13,198 10,959
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A)

126

8. EFEFMRIOBERSHFMES @)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEEHM(E)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out LBEEMHNEHY T -
below:
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EZic = 19 REHHN Bk S8
g BNER A BE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2016 ARETT ARETRT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EBELE - 616 584 15 1,215
Mr. Zuo Manlun ImREE - 596 604 32 1,232
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EXEL T - 616 584 15 1,215
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEREE - 600 600 4 1,241
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KB - 600 600 M 1,241
Mr. Chen Guonan BREmEE 616 - 584 26 1,226
Dr. Lin Shaoguan et - 1,128 300 17 1,445
Mr. Huang Guirong HEERE - 600 600 m 1,311
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRESE 616 - 584 15 1,215
1,232 4,756 5,040 313 11,341
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Mr. Lin Dewei WEETE 467 - - - 467
Independent BIEHT
non-executive directors: EE .
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERE 278 - - - 278
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ FEIS %4 278 - - - 278
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RYFEE 278 - - - 278
Ms. Lan Fang Brut 278 - - = 278
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREL 278 - - - 278
1,390 - - - 1,390
3,089 4,756 5,040 313 13,198

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T



8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMREZESFMEES @)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) E=EM2(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BHR RN RARRE
e B AL 1R @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2015 AREFT  ARETT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EELE - 579 422 14 1,015
Mr. Zuo Manlun TWREE - 573 427 30 1,030
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping XS T - 579 422 14 1,015
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEREE - 600 400 41 1,041
Mr. Kong Zhaocong kLS - 600 400 41 1,041
Mr. Chen Guonan IREI 5 A 579 - 422 24 1,025
Dr. Lin Shaoquan wheEt - 1,027 - 17 1,044
Mr. Huang Guirong HERRHE - 600 400 62 1,062
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRERE 579 - 422 14 1,015
1,158 4,558 3,315 257 9,288
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei WEELE 366 - - - 366
Independent BIEHT
non-executive directors: -
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERAE 261 - - - 261
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ FEIZ%4 261 - - - 261
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFEE 261 - - - 261
Ms. Lan Fang mELt 261 - - - 261
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREL 87 - - - 87
Dr. Bai Chongen REAET 174 - - - 174
Mr. Gao Lixin BUMKAE - - - - -
1,305 - - - 1,305
2,829 4,558 3,315 257 10,959
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8.

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued)
No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2015: Nil).

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

BEEYME AR HFNES (&)

(A) ESME(HE)
BMEEENEXRIRETAME -
M A 55 8 77 4 7 D o0 B AR SR B s A
MBAREE R LBBRMEMRE
EXfHEMBE -

FAMEBECNREN FTEIFENTE
ENEAEMEE (20155 « &) -

(B) HEBSHMES
FR-AKEIEESFMNEEAR
B RNFRAZFESFHMEFBEHR
P ESCEEB(A) ©

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIBHHEX
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Current tax BIHAT I8

PRC A 471,713 408,266
Other jurisdiction Hibal AkER 421 88
472,134 408,354

Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE
PRC s (26,641) (14,097)
Deferred tax RIEFE IR 65,595 51,964
Total tax charge for the year FERRIB AR 511,088 446,221

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

The statutory rate of Hong Kong profits tax was 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2015: Nil).

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

Ak EAR AR EK B A TR S TS
P R AR T A S T R R E R
BB FFIGR o

EBFEH
EENNEGBHRNIBEEEEELENHTIE
PRBUEF] - AT E16.5% (20154 ¢
16.5% )18 - ERNAREBRAFRL EHE
EBELETMERTET R ERALFEE
HEBFSHAEE(2015F - &) -



INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax provision in respect of its operations
in mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rates on the taxable profits for both years, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Certain of the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% during both
years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

FrE%i B < (@)

Bl ATIEB
AEBEDREMEFENERTEN - AH
MORALE  2EREVIREE  RER
BERGHE B A EF TS HEE -

AEBETFREHBAARAASES TS
A CEEN  WTFI%NERLE
FEHE -

BB 2 e E
A EBRE AR E 2 BB R DR ES
EEE BT AARERTIEN
FIBEEY -

RAADRA S W R R FE R AR
FE B S 5T 08 R AR B AT M 0 B BB
SREB B B OBIAMAL O HEMT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Profit before tax B BRI F 2,424,792 2,064,671
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax rate BHRBEMSHE25%
of 25% HEHFIIB 606,198 516,168
Effect of tax concessions for certain ETHBARBIEESRDN
subsidiaries T (232,631) (215,365)
Share of profit of a joint venture DME—HEEEEEF (203) (275)
Income not subject to tax BART W = (2,179) (1,813)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 11,623 24,841
Tax losses utilised from prior years g AR BEFEERIEGE (6,930) (3,380)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIAEE 61,168 48,274
Adjustments in respect of current tax of RBEFEFERBIED
prior years Bk (26,641) (14,097)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the RN BB E A A
distributable profits of the Company's A 991K Y42 FI 25 % UK
subsidiaries in the PRC TEIRFTISHiME & 100,683 91,868
Tax charge at the Group's EASBEERHEFTEN
effective rate M H 511,088 446,221
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10. DIVIDENDS 10. IRE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$’000 HK$ HK$'000
BT F&ET BT THET
per share per share
ST Hi%
2015 final dividend paid ET2015F RHIR B
(2015: 2014 final dividend (20154 : 24t
paid) 2014FRELE.) 0.13 403,314 0.13 404,333
Equivalent to ZERN RMB339,228,000 RMB318,861,000
AK#339,228,0007T AR #318,861,0007T
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend RIEBRE  EFEZHEMNBE2016512
of HK15 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December A31 B IEFEIRN KRR EFR L ER5
2016 (2015: final dividend of HK13 cents in respect of the B (20154 : H£2015F12A31HIEF
year ended 31 December 2015) per ordinary share has been R RER BRI @M1 38I) - A
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the RERREEREBTKE EHER - FEk
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. - o
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO M. XAREEABLERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per BEATSEAESRERALESAT
share are based on:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREET T
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company st E &L E A & #5% B A b
used in the basic and diluted earnings per BRIBARQDBEA A
share calculation FE(E % 7 1,922,027 1,621,117

1 30 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited A BB %8 5 B AR A F)



11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

11.

ARATEBEANELERERN (@)

Number of shares

BB HE
2016 2015

Shares BB

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & &% E AR K #5582 7 b
of the Company in issue used in the basic RRMARFEEITERR

and diluted earnings per share calculation kg ER

3,104,256,632 3,110,255,400

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 includes 3,110,255,400 ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2015 (2015: 3,110,255,400 ordinary shares in issue
as at 31 December 2014). The calculation for the year ended
31 December 2016 has excluded 5,998,768 shares derived
from the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
7,837,000 ordinary shares repurchased during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

AUETEEZE2016F12 8318 EFEH
ERERAEBFHBROMNEFSHE  2ER
201512 A31HE #77193,110,255,400
A% & i@ A% (20154 : A20149F12 431 H
= 179 3,110,255,400 % & @ AL ) - &
E2016F 12 A31 B I FEWZTE IR0
B 5,998,768 & Bz 17 + IR B F N = 5 Y
7,837,0000% & i@ A% Ay INAE 19 &L o

REZE2016F K2015F12A31HILEFE -
NEEWEEBETHEEEELER -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y - BENEZE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Plantand  and office Motor  Leasehold Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
74 £ER

tHERT  EERAE  WOERG nE REMREE  ERIE it
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR  AR®TR

Cost: HA:
At 1 January 2015 2015617418 2,381,224 2,811,064 106,926 151,272 4,011 1206477 6,680,974
Additions AE 43,689 152,619 53,820 8,673 823 754,055 1,013,679
Interest capitalised ERIHE - - - - - 410 410
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEEB A 38,370 91,410 il 2,702 - 87,458 220,211
Transfers o 528,522 115,348 1,966 727 - (646,563) -
Disposals il (1,279) (22,016) (2,561) (19,210) (67) (366) (45,499)
Exchange realignment ESAE 988 (1,246) (484) 503 (762) Wl 730)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015F12A318 R
1 January 2016 01651718 2991614 3,147,179 159,938 144,667 4,006 1,421,742 7,869,045
Additions AE 27,200 191,575 27,808 23472 13,703 817,147 1,100,905
Interest capitalised ERIHE - - - - - 1,720 1,720
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHBAR
(note 35) (Ht:E3s) 68,767 57,843 1,756 5,844 - 7837 142,047
Transfers o 463,180 124,896 2,601 - 32,976 (623,653) -
Disposals & (223 (73,694) (3,113) (3,141) (709) (29,708) (110,588)
Exchange realignment EREE 1,152 2,847 534 260 402 514 5,709
At 31 December 2016 20164125318 3,551,590 3,450,646 189,524 171,102 50,377 1595599 9,008,838
Accumulated depreciation and  E3t7ER
impairment; W
At 1 January 2015 201561418 (361,053) (891,929) (72,456 (90,952 (970) - (1.417,360)
Provided for the year TERHR (136226 (296,209) (16,607) (16,940) (1,022) - (467,004)
Disposals HE 1,153 8,076 2,390 14,87 - - 26,490
Impairment HE - (379) - - - - (379)
Exchange realignment AR (182) 395 572 (90) 325 - 1,020
At 31 December 2015 and R2015%12A318 R
1 January 2016 01651718 (496,308) (1,180,046 (86,101) (93,111) (1,667) - (1,857,233
Provided for the year REFHR (16,675)  (322,650) (29,487) (20,111) (15,452) - (553,37)
Disposals e 17 36,309 2,356 2,403 49 - 41134
Impairment i - - - - - (15,467) 15,467)
Exchange realignment E5AE (262) (586) (395) (548) (153) - 1,944)
At 31 December 2016 20164128318 (662,228)  (1,466,973) (113,627) (111,367) (17,223) (15,467)  (2,386,885)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 20165127318 2,889,362 1,983,673 75,897 59,735 33154 1580132 6,621,953
At 31 December 2015 R2015512/31H 2,495,206 1,967,133 73,837 51,556 2,338 1421742 6,011,812
Included in the Group's property, plant and equipment is a FTAREBNYE - BEREREZ KA ERE
freehold land which had a net carrying amount of RMB763,000 T BEELEE A ARKT63,0007C(2015
(2015: RMB714,000). The freehold land is situated outside £ ARMET14.00070) o Zok AR+
Hong Kong. RN EBIEIN
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13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 13. AN LHEAER

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & AR¥ET T ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,181,770 1,109,600
Additions NE 96,265 70,283
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g 1i0)=NG] 35 19,584 21,978
Provided for the year REEFHE 7 (25,227) (22,362)
Exchange realignment b 5 A 3,067 2,271
At 31 December M®12A31H 1,275,459 1,181,770
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MHEBNDITA -
Non-current assets SEMBNE E 1,249,367 1,157,926
Current assets included in SFARBEERN
prepayments, deposits and AR ek
other receivables Hih el zhiE 25 26,092 23,844
1,275,459 1,181,770
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWE
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January M1A1H 318,431 -
Additions NE 2,045,883 318,376
Changes in fair value NAEEEZE 7 31,885 55
Exchange realignment ME 5 % 73,289 -
At 31 December M®12A31H 2,469,488 318,431
The Group’s investment properties represent vacant lands REEBZREVELSEFERPNEE L
which are pending for development. Hp o
VALUATION PROCESSES HERF
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment RIERAR - REBNWREMERAREER
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by 2% WHBY - FEEREGERNGEMZ
independent professionally qualified valuers with valuation THMEER AEERHE :
techniques detailed below:
American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.:  For properties in Thailand American Appraisal MEEYEMS
(Thailand) Ltd.:
Augmen Consulting: For properties in Australia Augmen Consulting:  FUERMNIEMS
Colliers International Valuation & For properties in United Colliers International FLEBWEMmMS
Advisory Services, LLC: States Valuation & Advisory
Services, LLC:
Colliers International Realty For properties in Canada Colliers International FLINEAMEMmMS
Advisors Inc.: Reilty Advisors Inc..
BERRIEFME T For properties in PRC BERREFMELTH HRPEMEXME
A BRAR - AHEBR AR -
The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting EREEaERMGEMMEYSE2RE WATE
purposes are reviewed by management. Management also HE - BEENS EEEM REERRT &
discusses the valuation processes and results with the ER - BEENHEZ ARBENZIFTA
valuers. The fair value gains on revaluation are included in BamAm [ HEAURA -~ W EkFa] o

“other revenue, income and gains” in profit or loss.
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14.

134

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

VALUATION PROCESSES (Continued)

Management has reviewed the valuation results performed
by the external valuers for financial reporting purposes by
verifying all major inputs and assumptions, and assessing the
reasonableness of such valuations.

Further summary details of the Group's investment properties
are set out in the section headed “Summary of Investment
Properties” of this report.

VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The following table shows the valuation techniques used by
the valuers in determining the fair value. There have been
no significant changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

14. REWHE @)

HERF(HE)

BEEAREMA T EH ABER NIRRT
A BB (EEN B I R B HFH A A{E
RERETER  YHERFHENGENK -

REBIE MR R HE — S BHEN AR
S HEEMERE] 4 -

REFERDABEEERE
TRIVREEMEE A A EBERANMGE
giﬁ c FRNHBENEMERETMNERE

Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs
AREE HERSE AT EHAE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARYET T ARBT T
Vacant lands 1,965,880 318,431 Direct/sales comparison Premium (discount)
approach in quality of land
Z=F B HELECE B+ 1B S AERE 2
B (Frag)
Vacant lands 503,608 — Residual method Gross development
value and estimated
construction costs
=ELH g% mEREER
ThET SRR AR

2,469,488 318,431

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties were within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as their valuations were arrived at by reference to certain
significant unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into
or out of level 3 during the year (2015: Nil).
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(A)

(B)

15. BEREMETLEE

GOODWILL (A) e
Note RMB’000
fi s ARETTE
Cost and net carrying amount: R REFE :
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and IR B AR &
at 31 December 2016 7K2016%F12A31H 35 76,554
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HMtEEEE
Operating Patent and Computer
concession proprietary software
Brand name rights technologies and others Total
LS 5k SEBH4K
[k ReER BEEH Hth st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost; B
At 1 January 2015 #®2016% 1418 - - 1,213 52,293 53,506
Additions NE - - 401 11,666 12,067
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WM B A - - 132 205 337
Disposals & - - - (1,777) (1,777)
At 31 December 2015 and 2015612 A31H
1 January 2016 K2016%F1A1H - - 1,746 62,387 64,133
Additions NE - - 537 2,121 2,658
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEH B AR 110,520 24,550 25,193 173 160,436
Disposals HE - - - (621) (621)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 110,520 24,550 27,476 64,060 226,606
Accumulated amortisation S
At 1 January 2015 #®2015%1A41H - - (726) (17,375) (18,101)
Provided for the year KEEFE - - (160) (11,589) (11,749)
Disposals HE - - - 1,507 1,607
At 31 December 2015 and R2015F12A31H
1 January 2016 %2016F1 /18 - - (886) (27,457) (28,343)
Provided for the year AEERR - - (2,178) (12,586) (14,764)
Disposals HE - - - 116 116
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H - - (3,064) (39,927) (42,991)
Net carrying amount; BREEE ¢
At 31 December 2016 #20165F12H31H 110,520 24,550 24,412 24,133 183,615
At 31 December 2015 »2016%12A31H - - 860 34,930 35,790

Annual Report 2016 4

135



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire WS RaR MR
16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND

136

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name
and operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
have been allocated to three individual cash generating units
("CGUs"), comprising one subsidiary in the provision of
environmental engineering services, one subsidiary in the
provision of sewage treatment services and one subsidiary
in the provision of hazardous waste treatment services.
The carrying amount of goodwill, brand name and operating
concession rights at the end of the reporting period allocated
to these units are as follows:

16. BERHEMAERUTEAFH &

FEERE

SURERIAM S - A MBHRRMFE 16
o EE - BERAE R F 2 iR KR
e OEE=HAENNHESELEM
([BEELEM])  ZFEMNBHE—HIE
HRETRERE 2B L - —RHERHIFK
BRIB ARG < B~ 7 e — R B fnE iR
BRBZWBRR - MRREHRDEEZ
FEMCHE  BmRREFEEENT

Operating
concession
Goodwill Brand name rights
kS [k RARERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT R AR®T
Guangzhou EP Environmental BINTIRFRELIZR R
Engineering Ltd. and its BRARIMENBAA
subsidiary("GZEP") (TGZEP)) 29,100 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan BLUTIEERELRRRIEERE
Environmental Management Co., Ltd. BRAR
(“Huifengyuan”) ([EZR]) 7,457 - -
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading Co.,  BEEXIEZEAR LA NENBELRA
Ltd. and its subsidiary (“Baolai") (r&%x]) 39,997 - 1,320
76,554 110,520 24,550

Management regarded brand name and operating concession
rights acquired through business combinations having indefinite
useful lives because they are expected to generate net cash
inflows indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, management determines that
there are no impairments of any of its CGUs containing goodwill,
brand name and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives.

The recoverable amounts of GZEP, Huifengyuan and Baolai
have been determined based on value in use calculation
using cash flow projections which based on financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period. The
post-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are 13.70%, 11.90% and 12.50%, respectively. The cash
flows of GZEP, Huifengyuan and Baolai beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2.00%.
The rate is based on the long-term Customer Price Index of
China. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the units’ past performance and management'’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts of GZEP,
Huifengyuan and Baolai to exceed their recoverable amounts
respectively.
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BEEREBEGAWEL ZB% RIFRT
RERAAERAERFH - WIHNETR
HIR EEERAR S IMATFH

RERR  BEEREENHEEDE A
ERAERFHNERREFEEENRS
EEEUBEREE -

GZEP » [EZR R E R AT £ B THIRE
RersBAUREREESAGE - 28
SRETBREUAEIE I EN A F I KTE
EAEEM - WERETERTRARKRTI%EL
WERHFAE13.70% * 11.90% K% 12.50% °
GZEP - [BELRLEBRAFHENR SRS
BFHA2.00%METHEERHMES - ZIERX
D2BHERHEBEMERERET - 55
AFAEEMNHECETERREAEREHE
BLEMEMESRA REOETER -
BT HERENEMNBEFREBRER
BHENTSERNBEMEL - BRER
B ERZE R IR ERA IR E

TEEHGZEP - ELRAERZSENER
ERHNEZEMAKROESE -



17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. A—EEELENER

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Share of net assets DB EFE 7,988 7,175
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: SRNDENEBNT
Percentage of
Place of FeEat
Registered registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activity
£ AfRE  ERREREE fiEgRa REE FEffRR IEXE
Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50 Provision of
Equipment Design Services Co., Ltd.* household
decoration
design work and
maintenance services
ERBE BN B R RBER LA AK10,000,0007T e 50 50 50 REFERMRH
R&ERH
The following table illustrates the information of the Group’s TEE2HNAREFRALD RSN LR -
interest in the joint venture:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTTT
Share of joint venture's: DG ERE
Profit from continuing operations FESE XS R 813 1,101
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 miiss - -
Total comprehensive income 2EW B 813 1,101
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

138

18. AIHHERE

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M= AR®ET T AR®ET T
Listed investments: rmisE
Equity securities listed in PRC R E IR AR S 515,777 -
Non-cumulative redeemable preference A& FIE 2 AIIEE
shares listed in Hong Kong B 44,991 43,238
Perpetual capital securities listed in REB EMKABER
Hong Kong 75 30,597 -
591,365 43,238
Unlisted investments: ELTRE !
Equity securities R AR 75 25 15,625 5,125
Convertible notes AT R iR (if) 123,824 -
139,449 5,125
730,814 48,363

Note:

(i)

(iii)

The unlisted equity securities are issued by private entities established
in PRC. They are measured at cost less any impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

The convertible notes are issued by a private company incorporated in US
with an interest rate of not less than 5.00% per annum and will mature in
three years from the date of issuance.

The convertible notes are separated into two components: the debt
element and the conversion option element. The Group has classified the
debt element and the conversion option as available-for-sale investments
and derivative financial instruments, respectively. Details of the
conversion option element were included in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The fair value of the debt element of the convertible notes is determined
based on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's available-
for-sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
RMB36,489,000 (2015:RMB34,608,000) were pledged to a bank to
secure the banking facility granted. The Group has not utilised this
banking facility as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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(if)

(iii)

FE L AR 25 = B R B AR LA AL R P
7 AREENAABEMGITEEAKR  KAQF
EERREDABEEEENE  ZERET
BRI E BREFRERZE °

AT RR B — IR SR B R SL AR A B P B
7 o HERMETMENGE.00% - WG 81T HHALE
SE=FEIH -

AHRBREED AR EEARBD - EHHD RATHE
BIERL D o AKE D B BN A0 KAy g
DREBAAIHEERERTESHTA - AJER
BED ZF BRI N GAMBmERME21 -

AHREREREBHEO AN BEDIREL - X
REBROGEMETHEERELEETE

RBEHR  AEERLEEFEAARE
36,489,000 JT(20154F + AR #34,608,0007T)
BE T o] S 10E B M RTIR R E B ERIRTT
BREMER - W2016F12A318 » REE T E
B) AL IRITRLE (20164 « &) o



19. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 19. FEZZHKE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT

Debt securities, at amortised cost: TR EK Y BRNERE S ¢

Listed in Hong Kong BBLEM 59,655 55,784
Listed in Singapore g - 6,651
59,655 62,435

The held-to-maturity investments represent debt securities.
These securities carry fixed interest at 8.00% to 12.00%
(2015: 8.00% to 12.00%) per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears, and will mature from March 2019 to February 2020
(2015: April 2018 to February 2020).

BEZIBRERERES - 25FFH
/) F B IR E T F FE8.00% £ 12.00% &1
E (20154 : 8.00% £12.00% ) * B¥F
S 201963 8 2202052 A B
(20164 : 2018F4 AE2020F2A4) »

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. FEWERK
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT
Non-current FERE
Finance lease receivables B E & RIS R UGRIR 63,191 -
Current TE
Finance lease receivables BB M & RIS UGRIR 31,886 -
Factoring receivables IR AR 7% FE UL 5k IE 173,640 83,000
Receivables from supply-chain financing L 8 b & R 7S FE Uk
services WIE 120,238 -
325,764 83,000
388,955 83,000
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

140

(A)
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FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A)

20. EWER(E)

BMERERBERREA

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
BiEHEE REEESRE
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTT AR¥TRT ARET
Within 1 year 1FR 36,457 - 31,886 -
Over 1 year but within 19 LA FB4F
5 years AR 66,819 - 63,191 -
103,276 - 95,077 -
Less: Unearned finance W RERRE
income W= (8,199) - N/A N/A
Present value of minimum R EWFIE
lease payment receivables B1E 95,077 - 95,077 -

The Group’s finance lease receivables are denominated
in RMB. The effective interest rate of the receivables
is 5.89% (2015: Nil) per annum. There was no
unguaranteed residual value of assets leased under
finance leases and no contingent rent arrangement that
needed to be recognised in both years.

The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance
lease receivables.

NEBE R L E T E RS ERETEA
REEFE - ZERFIENERFNE
735.89% (20154 : %) - KNMEFE
N BECAREREEENRER
FIARERE  NEEAATERNIANE
ELHE -

NTARERSEREEEFENEER
HEIM -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARBT T

Neither past due nor impaired R AT ARRUE 95,077 -

The receivables are secured by assets leased under
finance leases and cash deposits (where applicable).

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are
collected upfront based on a certain percentage of the
entire value of the lease contracts. When the lease
contract expires and all related liabilities and obligations
are fulfilled by the customer, the cash deposit will be
returned in full. The balance of the cash deposit can also
be used to settle any outstanding lease payments for
the corresponding lease contract. The collected cash
deposit of RMB10,000,000 has been included in “other
long-term payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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ZEYFBENREHEEERRER
T (ER) ERER -

REMEEFPReRE NEREES
MEREENET A LR -
REEANERAREFEITAR
BETRERE ZReREHER
MRE ReEREERTAAREE
HEBEES NI REEHEER
B o MERAMBIRERAN H b &K
FERTRIE ] B A K% 10,000,000 7T &Y
ERHRE SRS -



20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group’'s factoring receivables arise from the
provision of factoring services to companies located
in PRC. The credit period granted to each customer is
generally within 365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/
or commercial bills originally owned by the customers.
These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from
4.50% to 6.00% (2015: 4.35% to 11.00%) per annum.

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

20. ERfER(#)

(B)

R AR 75 B WK R

7R £5 [ B (R 72 AR 75 B WK IR 2K B [ R
BARRERERYE - RTEEFPH
ERHIR — MR BB65KRA °

RIEREEWRBARKEELES
MEKGRIER SR EEERKIF - Z
LW FIBIZN F4.50% £6.00% K
FEHME (20154 : 4.35% =11.00% )
B .

REIEHIR - KA RIE IR EUKR
ZEEIBERET

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT

With a residual maturity of: m EREARR
Within 3 months 3EAA 37,640 1,000
4 to 6 months 4%61E A 36,000 82,000
7 to 12 months 72121E A 100,000 -
173,640 83,000

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
factoring receivables was either past due or impaired
(2015: Nil).

At 31 December 2015, included in the Group’s factoring
receivables was an amount due from a related company
of RMB45,000,000. The related company is beneficially
owned and controlled by a director of the Company.

R¥REHIR - A5 EH R IE IR B W
RS EE ISR E (20165 « &) -

MR2015F12A318 + REEMRER
W RIE B S R — A QRN
18 A R#45,000,0007T ° 3% @B A A
MARR —REFE=EA RIES -
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

142

(B)

(C)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Loan to this related company, disclosed pursuant
to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

20. EWER(E)

(B)

R IR %5 B WO R (4]

RIFE B R BERPIFE383(1)(d) fF &L~
A(RBEEENEEM) RPIFEIE
R RAME A BIEL 2 BRI T ¢

Maximum At

amount 31 December

At outstanding 2015 and

31 December during 1 January

2016 the year 2016

R2015%

12A31H

H20165& FRKS %2016%F

12A31H REEEHE 1818

Name RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7 AR®T T ARETTT ARETTT
Guangdong Liansu Electric ERBEER = 45,000 45,000

The loan was secured by the receivables of this related
company, subject to monthly interest rate of 0.36% and
monthly service fee of 0.64% and repayable within 365
days.

RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain
financing services to companies located in PRC. The
credit period granted to each customer is generally
within 60 to 180 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from
5.40% to 7.20% per annum (2015: Nil).

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services,

amounting to RMB49,938,000, were secured by certain
equity interests and personal guarantees.
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(C)

EA N INCIPA 3 C =i
o RFAFR0I6%NTARES
0.64%5T5E + W/EMNIGEANIEE °

14 i 8 0 5 AR 75 B WL TR

ZRER B3R B R 5 B A AR A% B IR R
HRERHE R REHEERE R
e BTREEFPHNERBR KR R60
£180K -

ZERWKIALEN F5.40%E7.20%
HFER R (201654 : )12 -

ETRAHEEEMEREEKZES
HAR®49,938,0007T * LAZE T HA
M zE M AE A PEARVEIE AR o



20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES (Continued)
The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

20. EWERR ()

(C) HIEsERE IR URIE (&)

REB|EIKR - REHERRE R E
Wk 2 BIBIE R T

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFT

With a residual maturity of: i B HAPR
Within 3 months 3MEARA 83,238 -
4 to 6 months 42618 A 37,000 -
120,238 -

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
receivables from supply-chain financing services was
either past due or impaired (2015: Nil).

The directors believe that no provision for impairment is
necessary for loan receivables as there has not been any

RBERKR - AREXROHERRE
AR 7 ) BT 5 FE WK TR B £ 28 HA SRR (B
(2015%F : &) o

EERR ARESEFPMNEEE R AR
ER - BREESRDR AR BERE

significant change in the credit quality of these customers and I A ZB BE R FE MR SRIE BB B o
these balances are still considered fully recoverable.
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fTEE@I A
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETTT
Non-current assets: FRBEE
Conversion option EIE: b 32,566 -

The Group's derivative financial instruments are managed and
the performance is evaluated on fair value basis. Any changes
in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the conversion option has been estimated
using valuation technique based on assumptions that are
supported by observable market prices or rates. Management
has reviewed the valuation result by verifying all major inputs
and assumptions, and assessing the reasonableness of such
valuation.

AEBZTESBTARERRIIEAAE
BEAEETELE - AL EBEEZHY
RIBZE N HER ©

AEBREN QA BEAERAAERMSE
REA R8s 2 R GETDAMER - B
BREAREMBIEG A ABBLRERTA
ERZMAEAR  XAAZAEZAEE -
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Details of the conversion option were included in note 18(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

The conversion option was stated at fair value of
RMB32,566,000 (2015: Nil) based on a valuation performed by
an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value
gain of RMB1,942,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of the conversion
option was recognised in profit or loss for the year.

21. fTE€m I A@®)

AERENFANRE B ERNEA MB®REK
FEE18() ©

AT Th IR N 7 (BB A R #32,566,000 70
(20154 « E)FIER - Z AR BEENABL -
BEREERNEEMELNEEREE
B A ARY1,942,0007C(20154F : #) 2
AEBEN R EENSERR T REE -

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Raw materials R4 % 1,170,591 836,788
Work in progress TE G 355,142 350,120
Finished goods ERK & 1,221,332 1,019,635
2,747,065 2,206,543
23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 23. YW HEFHNEHNIRERE
CONTRACT WORK
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Contracts in progress at the end RBEHRZER
of the reporting period =5
Contract costs incurred plus recognised ESBEEESYKNAINEER
profits less recognised losses to date SRR D HEREE 744,649 -
Less: Progress billings W HEEET B (621,419) -
123,230 -
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HMEENDWNA :
Amounts due from contract customers FBIREFRNALITERIE 163,279 -
Amounts due to contract customers ENEPRNALIERIE (40,049) -
123,230 -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

4. ESRBRERRE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Trade receivables E 5 WA 1,254,357 1,186,226
Bills receivable FEW =& 383,921 292,648
Less: Provision for impairment o ORE R (121,030) (81,077)
1,517,248 1,397,797

The Group's major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the
customers, the Group's trading terms with its independent
distributors may change from settlement on an advance
receipt basis to giving a credit period of generally one
month or more, if appropriate. The Group does not have a
standardised and universal credit period granted to the non-
distributor customers. The credit period of an individual non-
distributor customer is considered on a case-by-case basis and
is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. Sales to small,
new, or short-term customers are normally expected to be
settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after the goods
delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for small,
new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

AEENTEEPRTEAMNE LD H
B IARTIEARE  FHERER - 2
EXRAT MNP - ARERFHR T
SR M EEFRRER - AR R D i
FEE B EIBRAN T AEEETNRET
—R—EAXZEANERHR(WWEE)
AEBEWES— RN HEEATPE TIREN
ERHIR - @RIZED HEE P ER MRS
FEBIERME - L HER KT A
EE) o HRE  FREREPHEE—
RIBHIATRN T RN REREHNEE -
AEBEWES/NRR - HHEMEPRULE
FHEIR -

B RUHFEREEAREERALLE

RBEHR - ARENE 5 REFARRE
HWERBRAMBRBROKREDTAT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T ARETT

Within 3 months 3MEAA 786,926 614,123
4 to 6 months 42618 A 309,326 232,213
7 to 12 months 7E2121@ A 153,734 330,126
1 to 2 years 1224 218,297 190,723
2 to 3 years 2E83%F 42,585 28,164
Over 3 years 3 E 6,380 2,448
1,517,248 1,397,797
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, ESEWREBERERE @#)
The movements in the provision for impairment of the Group’s REEBZ G ERINZENRERENESN
trade receivables are as follows: T
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 81,077 40,556
Impairment losses recognised EERBAEBRE 41,032 43,577
Amounts written off as uncollectible b= =R NGB B | (1,079) (3,056)
At 31 December ®12H31H 121,030 81,077
The above provision of RMB121,030,000 (2015: B4 A R#121,030,0007T (20154 ¢
RMB81,077,000) is for individually impaired trade receivables AR¥81,077,0007T) st & 2 B SR M 4218
with their aggregate carrying amount before provision of B AR #185,5696,0007T (201654 « AR
RMB185,596,000 (2015: RMB81,414,000). The individually 81,414,0007T ) (V& RIR(E & 5 U FRIEE
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that are in o ERIREE 5 FE YR I8 8158 L3 R A
default or delinquency in payments. PHEFE@ -
The aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables AEEER RERFEHTREEREES
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be JEUGIAE N ZEABRER ST
impaired is as follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
Neither past due nor impaired KRBT ARR(E 929,097 905,606
Past due but not impaired: B EE M ARRE -
Less than 3 months past due 1 HA D RS A 149,266 151,195
4 to 6 months past due BHEIAZ6{E A 96,488 92,742
7 to 12 months past due wmE7E 1218 A 172,369 144,272
1 to 2 years past due BHER1 B 24 79,448 97,204
2 to 3 years past due BER2E3F 23,405 5,421
Over 3 years past due BHEI3F LA 2,609 1,020
1,452,682 1,397,460

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there is no

recent history of default.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors believe that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. AR  RERHMEWKIEA
RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
L ARET T ARBT T
Prepayments TR 1,023,150 427,832
Current portion of prepaid land lease  TEf t3 A E 74
payments meE 13 26,092 23,844
Value-added tax recoverable FIRNEER 186,063 120,166
Corporate income tax recoverable FRINETER 2,026 716
Deposits bt 96,718 37,665
Other receivables H i jE U Fh18 85,596 41,185
1,419,645 651,408
The financial assets included in the above balances are iR eENemEENEER 28K
unsecured, interest-free and receivable on demand. B ESRYGK -
26. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 26. HERBITHERK
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Restricted cash: EREIRE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERIRITRENEREZS 815,225 638,033
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRBEeFEY
Time deposits with original maturity of TEHER(REHEA
three months or less when acquired Z@AAT) 238,570 370,054
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTH R 2,831,888 2,885,457
3,070,458 3,255,511
Cash and bank deposits e RIBITFH 3,885,683 3,893,544
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily FHRRITHE SIS RETERAERRNF
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for B AR BEEVH B - 5 BT BRTE S HRFR Y F
varying periods between one day and twelve months and 1 RE12{A BT EWIRE 5 HF i 3 ) =
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. BEEVA B o SR1TES R ZREIIR S F RN
The bank balances and restricted cash are deposited with B 428 A 2 B T MERTT ©

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ESENRERERE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Trade payables B ST 5RIE 784,645 550,861
Bills payable FEEE 2,818,517 1,130,721
3,603,162 1,681,582
Trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on ZoORENTENRE  SEHRBEE A30
terms 30 to 90 days. HZE90H o
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables at the RI|ERKR  REENE SENREREZRE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HEBEEAHMESRSTHOT
follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Within 3 months 3EAR 828,384 646,547
4 to 6 months 4% 6{E A 230,293 681,165
7 to 12 months 7=12{8 A 2,495,188 334,281
1 to 2 years 15224 6,614 11,120
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 14,962 4,895
Over 3 years 3FEME 27,721 3,674
3,603,162 1,681,582
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HENRIEREFER
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Advances from customers BERR 1,108,297 904,243
Accruals et E R 43,541 68,488
Salaries and welfare payables T & M@ A 96,759 75,515
Other payables H fib jE 1~ 5008 482,973 477,656
1,731,570 1,525,902
The financial liabilities included in the above balances are LR ENSRaE e B RIRESRE
interest-free and repayable on demand. )
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29. BORROWINGS

29. Bk

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBT T
Current TE
Unsecured bank loans EIERIRITER 2,109,925 927,570
Current portion of long-term unsecured RAEPEIEBIRITE A
bank loans mEE D 131,479 70,637
Current portion of long-term unsecured RESERREERDN
syndicated loans mENER D 2,010,750 -
Secured other loans BEMAEAMER = 5,678
Loans from non-controlling interests FEVE B B K = 61,617
4,252,154 1,065,502
Non-current FERB
Unsecured bank loans EIERIRITER 422,907 301,338
Unsecured syndicated loans EFFIREER = 1,873,900
Secured bank loans BEIPRITER 7,500 -
Loans from non-controlling interests JEEHIE R E R 12,000 -
442,407 2,175,238
4,694,561 3,240,740
Analysed into borrowings repayable: BEEER
Within one year or on demand —F R IL B EF 4,252,154 1,065,502
In the second year E-FER 422,907 1,106,809
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EEERFN(REERMTF) 14,476 1,068,429
More than five years ZRAF 5,024 -
4,694,561 3,240,740

Note: Bt

(a) The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings range from 1.06% (a) NEEBERZ EEENENF1.06%24.90% T
10 4.90% (2015: 1.18% to 8.90%) per annum. Z(2015%F : 1.18% %8.90%) °

(b) The unsecured syndicated loans will mature from May 2017 to January (b) IR EERI - EXHREEERBENR201755
2018 unless being repaid earlier. During the year, the Group exercised AZE2018FE1A 2R - &R - AEFEETFE
the option to early repay all of the outstanding principal in January 2017. EEER2017TF1 ARRFEEREERS -

(c) The secured bank loans are secured by the sewage treatment (c) ANEEz GEFETETIA—RBHB AT TK
concession rights of a subsidiary and also guaranteed by its RIBIE A S REVEIR IR R AR R AEIE(R
shareholders.

(d) The loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free (d) JEEHIERZ ERAEER - 2B RER2019
and will mature in September 2019 (2015: unsecured, interest-free and FIOAF (20165 « MIEH - L RIZERE
repayable on demand). ;) o

(e) At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are (e) RIREEER » REBUET - B - ARBESE

denominated in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi and Thai Baht at
aggregate amounts of RMB3,478,442,000 (2015: RMB2,570,725,000),
RMB876,620,000 (2015: RMB590,635,000), RMB339,499,000 (2015:
RMB17,763,000) and Nil (2015: RMB61,617,000), respectively.

BREHER B RBES B A ARYS3,478,442,000
7L (20154 : AR#¥2,670,725,0007T) « AR
876,620,0007T (20154 : A K # 590,635,000
L) - A K % 339,499,000 7T ( 2015 5 : A
R #17,763,0007T ) & (20154 : AR
61,617,0007T) °
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. IEZERIE
The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their LTERREFER E—FECHERANEER
movements during the current and prior years are as follow: EMIBEE,/ (BB REEE
Withholding
Fair value Fair value tax on
adjustments adjustments  distributable
arising from  Provisionfor  Accelerated  Decelerated arising from  profits of
investment  impairment tax tax acquisition of  subsidiaries Deferred
properties of assets  depreciation  depreciation  subsidiaries in the PRC income Total
U YEKELD HENELT

figth BEN  MEEE  EWRE KRN TRWEAG
MEERE  HERR fi i OAEERE  BRARR  EEMe Lh
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOD  RMBOOO  RMBIOND
ARETT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR

At 1 January 2015 RMOETA1A - 11,605 444 [1,489) (2,875) (64,178) 1528 (54,965)
Credited)(charged) to the #A/(108)
profit or loss for the yeer EEBE - 16,253 (19 1489 240 (69,8401 87) (51,964
At 31 December 2015 and R015E12A31B R
1 January 2016 01651718 - 27,88 425 - (2,635 (134,018 1441 (106,929)
Acaquistons of subsidares (note 35 BB - - - - {46,175 - - (46,175
Credited(charged) to the A/ (18)
profit or loss for the yeer Egia (8,540) 19352 18 - W (81,441 4,745 (65,595]
At 31 December 2016 016E128318 (8,540) 471210 41 - (48,569) (215,459) 6,186 (218,699)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB100,683,000 # 2@ 58 AN B g B M E A | 8] 5k & FE
(2015: RMB91,868,000) on the distributable profits of the Company's HH Y 3 AE A T8 #  A R %6 100,683,0007T (2015
subsidiaries in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities F: ARM91,868,00070) WL IHZ EH B A
of RMB19,242,000 (2015: RMB22,028,000) arising from dividends AIREAMEIMEEESRREMEEANDER
declared by these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year. FIER BB EARE 19,242,000t (20155 = A

R#22,028,0007T) °
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30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 30. JEEBLIE (H)

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Gross deferred tax assets recognised REE MR REA
in the consolidated statement of REELER IR

financial position BEMHE 53,869 29,724

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE PR EA
in the consolidated statement of HRAELER A
financial position BEERE (272,568) (136,653)
(218,699) (106,929)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland
China in respect of their earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax liabilities of RMB263,925,000 (2015:
RMB253,821,000) in respect of temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries, amounting to
RMB5,278,506,000 (2015: RMB5,076,411,000), that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

RIEFBEBEMSEE - R B A LA
INEREMINRIEEE ST IRARE AN
10% W TRIRFTIS L o %R E B 200841 A1
BifAER%R BRAMRBE2007F12A31HEE
BRZEF o 4 B A B INR I E & FTE
AIEBBEFFBBIEL - AR BIER
KEYMIBRFEH - 2EEMNEAREA
5% o Bt + BEEzE R A B A A S & BT B
NRIFL2008F 1 A1 BB EF MDA
REME » AEBEBMMTERFTER -

RBREHER  ARAREZEHZENB
AN ERE  BZEHEARTRG
D rd: VRCTI 12K NN 7 - S 3
REZEMNBRAAADERMNER=ZE A
A R # 5278,506,000 jt ( 2015 F : A
R % 5,076,411,000 7t ) K iE & 7 1B &
BERB(BERDRKZEREBEMNFZF) A
K % 263,925,000 7T (2015 F : AR
253,821,0007T) ©
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R

It

31.

32.

152

ire WS RaR MR

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by
the Group as financial subsidies for the construction of new
factory premises in Changchun, Daging, Hubei and Hunan and
rental income received in advance from certain of the Group's

employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over
the expected useful lives of the relevant properties by equal
annual instalments, while rental income received in advance is

31. EEWE

W s e AR B BT /B - ERE
ERE KB - Wit Xk B TRy
METEAR  URBAEERE TEREREL
WHHHEE TEEHSWA -

B BN B BRI X TBEA R (E B F IR IR
NEREEABmARER - MELWRNES
WARIIZE B HBIABSVERER

recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease

terms.
SHARE CAPITAL 32. A&
Shares [y %) 2016 2015
Authorised: ETE
20,000,000,000 (2015:20,000,000,000)  20,000,000,000(2015% : 20,000,000,0000  HK$1,000,000,000  HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BEREE.0SE AL BR 1,000,000,00055t  1,000,000,0007%8 T
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAE
3,102,418,400 (2015: 3,110,255,400) 3,102,418,400(2015% : 3,110,255,400) HK$155,120,920 HK$155,512,770
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each REREEC.05 T L Ak 155,120,920 7t 155,512,770/ T
Equivalent to ZER RMB 135,344,000 RMB135,686,000
AK#135,344,000t AR%135,686,0007T

The following changes in the Company's issued share capital

took place during the year:

FRARTEBITRARDIT :

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each
BRER Nominal value of
0.053% T ordinary shares
EERYA ERREE
HK$'000 RMB'000
THT AREFTT
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAE
At 1 January 2015, M201551 718 »
31 December 2015 2015F12A318 R
and 1 January 2016 20161718 3,110,255,400 155,512 135,686
Shares repurchased EEE (7,837,000) (391) (342)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31H 3,102,418,400 155,121 135,344

Note:

The Company bought back and cancelled a total of 7,837,000 ordinary shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration (including

expenses) of HK$32,917,000 (approximately RMB28,052,000).
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33.

34.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries which are established in the PRC has
been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to
use.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14
May 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

33.

34.

e

KEEAFERBEEEN LR
PENGABREHENZS) -

REBERRFING EDEENBERERERR
o NEE IR BRI RO E R R AV D
NEEBREARIRIOFEEES -

RS

2010558148 © AHEI R EEYHAEE
MG EERERINABIRSEA - AR
AR —TBEE R R At B ([ BB RT 21 ) -

AR E RIS BILASE - AR
SHEIR B AE -
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 35. X0
During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase FRN - AEEFVEE R 0 WREBUTA
agreements to acquire equity interests in the following BRI A RS
companies:
Acquisition date Company name Consideration Principal activities
s B ACIEE KB FTEEK
RMB
AR
1 April 2016 GZEP 160,000,000 Provision of
environmental
engineering services
20164 A1 H GZEP 160,000,0007T RERETIZRG
1 July 2016 Huifengyuan 12,765,025 Provision of sewage
treatment services
2016F7H1H bEE 28R 12,765,0257T RS /KR IE AR 75
1 July 2016 Baolai 117,300,000 Provision of hazardous
waste treatment
services
2016F7H1H B 117,300,0007T TR fE b B on B 1B AR 75
31 August 2016 Guangdong Lesso Lighting Co., Ltd.” 5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
("GD Lighting”) LED lighting products
201648 A31H BREZAIF A RERERAA] 5,000,000t  BUENMIEELEDIRAE R
(MBI iR )
The above acquisitions allow the Group to further diversify its it ESAREEE—SHELSER -

businesses.
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35. ¥¥a6t@m)

BRI+ L B 2N ) B E
affz A% EEET

The respective fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the above companies acquired at the dates of
acquisitions assumed by the Group are as follows:

GZEP  Huifengyuan Baolai  GD Lighting Total
GZEP EE2R X RIF KRR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment % - BE Nk E 27,697 9,682 104,868 - 142,047
Prepaid land lease payments B LHAEH - - 19,584 - 19,584
Other intangible assets HihEREE 159,093 1,320 23 - 160,436
Deposits paid for purchase of land, BE i - 9% - BE
property, plant and equipment R EREH T A4S - - 876 - 876
Other long-term receivables Hih R EEW R - 34,785 - - 34,785
Inventories 7K - - 979 9 988
Amounts due from customers for EUEFEHA KT
contract work FB 63,885 - - - 63,885
Trade and bills receivables ZoOENFBEREZE 50,921 - 7,764 - 58,685
Prepayments, deposits and BER - Be Rk
other receivables Hit YA 42,450 1,066 116,942 311 160,769
Cash and bank deposits RERBITER 15,332 754 2,545 4,689 23,320
Amounts due to customers for  EREEHAA TR
contract work FB (25,388) - - - (25,388)
Trade and bills payables EHRNTEREE (69,711) (340) (1,674) (9) (61,734)
Other payables HivRITIER
and accruals e BR (79,076) (40,893) (81,012) - (200,981
Borrowings EES (5,000) - - - (5,000)
Deferred tax liabilities ERBEERE (26,478) (377) (19,320) - (46,175)
Total identifiable net assets HAEEFEER
at fair value (B fEE) 163,625 5,897 161,575 5,000 326,097
Non-controlling interests JER IR (32,725) (589) (74,272) - (107,586)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions ~ EE LS 29,100 7,457 39,997 - 76,554
Total consideration RELE 160,000 12,765 117,300 5,000 295,065
Satisfied by: TRARN
Cash Be 72,000 12,765 117,300 5,000 207,065
Contingent consideration HARELH
arrangement (note (a)) GEE) 88,000 - = - 88,000
160,000 12,765 117,300 5,000 295,065
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= + 3
AR BTSRRI AT
35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35. XBE 0t
Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the MWBEEMNWEBRBEAXNEAEEARKE
acquisitions totalling RMB3,818,000 have been excluded from 3,818,000 T B # 5Bk H W R A 2 40 - B
the costs of acquisitions and have been recongnised directly ERFREEEZAAITIIRIEZM [H
as expenses for the year and are included in “other expenses” X IR o
in profit or loss.
The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables and RUER - B5RIKKIERZHRMAEM
other receivables as at the dates of acquisitions amounted to FEWFTEBEBHALBEAEAES B B AR
RMB58,685,000 and RMB139,982,000, respectively, which 58,685,0007T & A K #139,982,000 T £
approximate to the gross contractual amounts of those AEEWEZSHELESNE NS EEBER
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the dates o RIER  BEERATEIELKOR
of acquisitions, management considered that the contractual BB REWTEK -
cash flows not expected to be collected were insignificant.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible TETEAERME  FTECHERZEEET
for income tax purposes. BIEL
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is BERAZWENIRSRESMWOT :
as follows:
RMB'000
ARBT T
Cash consideration paid EffEeRE 207,065
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BWERSRREEEY (23,320)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KETDBENEEeIRESE
included in investing activities Byt & 183,745

156

Since the acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB134,467,000 to the Group’'s revenue and recognised a
profit of RMB17,375,000 in profit or loss for the year.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year,
the Group's revenue and profit for the year would have been
RMB17,258,330,000 and RMB1,897,747,000, respectively.

Note:

(a) The contingent consideration will only be paid if the net profit earned by
GZEP for the year ending 31 December 2017 is RMB40,000,000 or more.
An amount of RMB88,000,000 has been included in “other long-term
payables” on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37.

(A)

(B)

AS LESSOR

The Group leases certain office premises under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

ARG

REREER  AEBITETFEANAERE
(20154 : 4&) »

_—
re

(A)

HEZH

ERHEA
AEERBEEHELHLEE TH
ANE - HEBER—ERFTE -

RMEMR - RIBEBPL TR
BUHGEEA - NEEDHIE KR
K EHES@BWT :

>

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARMEFIT
Within one year —FR 6,751 2,458

In the second to fifth years, F_EFRTFNR
inclusive (BREEREME) 2,101 3,197
8,852 5,655

AS LESSEE (B) #ERABEA

The Group leases certain of its office premises,
production plants, warehouses and equipment under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to seventeen years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

AEERBEEEHELH  AAET
MAE - LEME  RENEE M
HRAER—E+EFTF -

RBEHR  RETAHELCEHN
# o AREIHEMOARRZEEE
eI

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARETIT

Within one year —FR 35,073 12,873
In the second to fifth years, F_EFRFN

inclusive (BREEEMSF) 92,501 31,825

After five years RFE 24,239 29,301

151,813 73,999
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38. COMMITMENTS 38. EiE

RBER - NEEGEA U TEARALE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR®ETFTT
Contracted, but not provided for: SHEEIGE =S
Land, property, plant and equipment b - WE - BB R
and investment properties MEEE 875,036 508,625

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

39. BBALR S K&

(A) THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH (A) FERLTEBEBBALZEARS
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR®T T AREETTT

Connected transactions BERXS
Transactions with companies under RZEE£RZ —(IE =
the common control of a director: THE AR S
Sales of goods HEE M (i)* 380 1,902

Financial service income & B AR TS W 2 (ii) 2,374 240
Consumption of utilities = N (iii) 1,673 8,323
Rental expenses HefM= (iv) 4,129 4,421
Purchases of materials PLEE AR (v)* 5,675 28,700
Purchases of equipment RERE (vi) 96,357 77,308
Purchases of electronic accessories  $REE & FRA {4+ (vi) 13 421
Licensing trademarks RTHEE (vii)* 407 404
Acquisition of GD Lighting U B 8136 S TR (viii)* 5,000 -
Agency services from companies =~ WE (I EERHIHZ R
under the control of a director NAFTIREHRERSE  (iX)* 3,247 3,807
Rental expenses paid to directors ~ MEEXNHESEX (x)* 1,592 1,495
Non-connected transactions FBERERH
Advisory services from a company REZEESZATE HH
under the significant influence of —EAE PTIRER R
directors BR 7 (ix) 7,358 -
Design and maintenance services & &M EIRMEMNRR
from a joint venture HEIERTS (xi) 3,600 4,100
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A)

THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Sales of goods to related companies were made with reference
to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to third-party
customers.

Provision of factoring services was made in accordance with
respective contractual terms offered by the Group to third-party
customers.

Utilities were provided by related companies at cost.
Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of materials from related companies were made based
on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of equipment and electronic accessories from related
companies were made with reference to the prices and conditions
offered by the related companies to their third-party customers.

Licensing trademarks to related companies were conducted
based on mutually agreed terms.

The consideration was agreed after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the fair value of net assets of GD Lighting at
approximately RMB5,000,000 as at 31 August 2016.

Agency services and advisory services were provided by related
companies based on mutually agreed terms.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops,
warehouses and yacht were leased to the Group based on
mutually agreed terms.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually
agreed terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from
complying with the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.

39. ARG REsRE)

(A) FERFKEEBABALTIZEARS

(#&)

(i) MEBARHEERDIUNARBRE=)
EFRLMER &G R2RET -

(i) RERERGIREAKEAFE=TFP
REZEEEOBRETE -

(i)  AFRZBETRARABEE A RIEE -
(iv) TEHEIXNIREFHERIRRGE -

(v)  MERIIRE R T REREEEARE

(vi) RBRERETERENESERABATASE=
FEFEREHERRIEF R AR QRS

(Vi) BTFEHQANEZ IR 5T NIER
T ©

(viii)  RETIZRAIF HFER2016F8A31HZ
FEENAREELHARES,000,0005T
LNFEEBIBE -

(ix)  BEE AT IYIRE T e MR IR A2 IR
T Kb AR o

(x) VEBERAE RE  BE - BERE
BE - TR BRI T A KE

(xi)  BELETIZETTHENGRIEHRRY -

’ ZEBA LIRS TR ETRAFE14A
SEMATNRERZUFEMERS
g T EmRAZRERTE -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

160

BALANCES (Continued)

39. AL REERE)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES (B) EdREEEAN L&tk
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ET T ARETTT
Balances with companies under REBHERT—UES
the common control of a director THIE N E R AR
arising from: xy :
Deposits paid for the purchases BERBIT 8
of equipment i (i) 72,744 14,400
Purchases of equipment IR (ii) 22,191 36,053
Loan lent under factoring services  RIBRBREEHEZ (i) - 45,000
Note: Bt 5
(i) The balances are included in the Group's deposits paid for the (i) EHRFALEEBE LT  UE BER
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment. BB HIES o
(i) The balances are included in the Group's trade and bills payables (i) HSHRIEATEENE ZENKEAREEM
and other payables and accruals. HAibfEFRIBERERTER -
(i) The balances are included in the Group's loan receivables. (i) AERETAREEEERAEL -
(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ)&iﬁ’gﬁx%ﬁ%lﬁ
Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into $$@%?W%’Eﬂ%?ﬂf§%%{’ﬁ%§
lease agreements with a director and a company under %Fﬁ?ﬁiﬁi—%§$&—ﬁ%ﬁﬁ—1\ﬁ
the common control of a director to lease properties EREHNDRILHEEHR IR
for operations, and sale and purchase agreements with Eﬁﬁ&ﬁf’ﬁi&?ﬁﬁiﬁ*?ﬁﬁﬁ%*
a company under the common control of a director to fﬁﬁ%?’g%ﬂﬁ’\]’&_ﬁjﬂﬁﬁﬁmaﬁ PN
purchase equipment for production. The operating lease E’ﬁé}4,528£)0075£2015$ AR
commitments of RMB4,528,000 (2015: RMB9,922,000) 9,922,00075) M 4% = T AR IR
with lease terms of three years and the capital R=%F" EE@/\\E@?%,OU,OOOE
commitments of RMB40,072,000 (2015: Nil) have been (20154 : M)MERNEESRIBER
included in notes 37(B) and 38 to the consolidated RE VSRR W EE37(B) K38 -
financial statements.
(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY (D) XEEFEEEAESFHM

MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Company’s directors and the
senior management was as follows:

ARTEERBREREOFHOT -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARYEF T ARBT T

Short-term employee benefits R EEER 13,870 11,636
Post-employment benefits RIKEAEF] 385 325
14,255 11,961

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T



40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. R TH

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) &I EER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR  SELRTANERE
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period |
are as follows:
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ET T ARETFIT
Financial assets TMEE
Investments RE
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 18 730,814 48,363
Held-to-maturity investments BERTEHKRE 19 59,655 62,435
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIE 21 32,566 -
823,035 110,798
Loans and receivables BEXRREKE
Other long-term receivables H b = HA e W Zh0E 37,623 -
Loan receivables FEYfEZX 20 388,955 83,000
Trade and bills receivables B rIFEEEE 24 1,517,248 1,397,797
Other receivables H b pE U sh 18 85,596 41,185
Cash and bank deposits BRe RIRITIFR 26 3,885,683 3,893,544
5,915,105 5,415,526
6,738,140 5,526,324
Financial liabilities EA =N
Financial liabilities at A SR8
amortised cost THEE
Trade and bills payables B2 RNHIERER 27 3,603,162 1,681,582
Financial liabilities included in FTAE AL B FIA R
other payables and accruals EFrERAMESmAas 482,973 477,656
Borrowings B 29 4,694,561 3,240,740
Other long-term payables E b REBFEFRIB 106,439 -
8,887,135 5,399,978
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40.

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

TRI A @)

(B) EAABENENEHMIANIAEE

2016
Fair value hierarchy
DNAEEERE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

B ot 1 1 Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE AR%¥TR AR%Tn AR%TxR

Available-for-sale investments AL HERE

Listed investments FHRE 515,777 75,588 - 591,365

Unlisted investments FELmrRE - - 123,824 123,824
Derivative financial instruments T4 &g TE - - 32,566 32,566

515,777 75,588 156,390 747,755
2015
Fair value hierarchy
RABEERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—% F_H E=/ BEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARBTT ARBTIL
Available-for-sale investments A EERE
Listed investments FiiRE 43,238 - - 43,238
During the year, the financial instruments amounted FR - R2015F12A31HEEAA
to RMB43,238,000 as at 31 December 2015 were R#43,238,000t & f TEH S H
transferred from level 1 to level 2 and there were TEAREBEAERE RETE -
no transfers into or out of level 3 for the financial Mo Burme A #EHE=H(2015
instruments of the fair value measurements (2015: Nil). Fm) o
The movements in fair value measurements within Level FAF=—RANAREBEFESHN
3 during the year are as follows: N
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 31 December 2015 and 20159128318 &

1 January 2016 201691 A1H -
Additions NE 146,158
Total gains recognised in profit or loss included in RIBREARERILET AL AMLA -

other revenue, income and gains Wz B ) 25 0 B b 2 1,942
Total gains recognised in other comprehensive REMEEKEAERA

income U 7,846
Exchange realignment bE 5 S8R 444
At 31 December 2016 #2016412 4318 156,390
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. @ T H(@#)
(C) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C) UFEAABEIFEZEMIAZAR
THAT ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BE
Except as disclosed in the following table, the carrying BRTRAIFEEEIN  NEBELZEEH
amounts of the Group’s financial instruments recognised BHREMRAZEeM T A ZERmEHRE
in the consolidated financial statements approximate NAEERE
their fair values:
2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REE AREE REE RREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AR%¥Trn ARBTT ARBTIL
Financial asset SREE
Held-to-maturity investments # 8 Z F|EiR & 59,655 64,880 62,435 66,762
The fair values are based on the quoted market price ARBEDIBEBEEKELVTENISE
provided by a leading global financial market data R ER IR TS MEETE -
provider.
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. € EREE B ERBER

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

AEENTIESMIABRETUAREEZR
BTN - ZEZeMIANTZERARIALR
SENLEERES - ARENAHMAE
BEEELANTREREENRAE  PIIE
2 FEMRIA B EL A FE MR IR AN B 5 8 N 5K 0R
KN B AR FROA -

AEEeRTAELANTIERR AN XA
B SNERER - FEERRERBESER o
RS BT AR Z S AR AR R &EK
FoAEEYEBEREATETAREMT
BDMEEIRZ A - REBEWERALBTIT
EERMTAUNEEEZA - EF2CEMY
RIZZEFEREENBR - ZBRmT -
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41.

164

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group
is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax by
assuming the floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

41.

HH

%rﬂﬂl‘ﬁ%’ﬁﬁ );ZJB( #)

A= E R
FEMNETAREHAEE@EER S REN
KRR - MEENETAFEHAEE R
DR EEMERER -

TRETERREE AN A TBT

EERRRFNAME - B BERR
FRE - AN AT I A T2 T s e0R
B 7 A -

Year ended 31 December 2016

Year ended 31 December 2016

#HZ=2016%F12A31H

#HZE20165F12H31H

Year ended 31 December 2015

Year ended 31 December 2015

#HZE201512831H

#H=®2015F12HA31H

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s main businesses are located in mainland China
and most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi.
Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, except for certain cash and bank deposits, trade
and bills receivables and borrowings denominated in HK dollar
and US dollar. The Group has not hedged its foreign exchange
rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Renminbi against the relevant currencies, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and loans).

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in basis in profit
points before tax
HAED BREE AR A
#wi i) #hn S CR)
RMB’000
AR¥T T
50 (22,913)
(50) 22,913
50 (15,851)
(50) 15,851
S = By
AEBEZEBRHUAP AN - A
DRGEANAREHELT - REBRHEDEE
LEBRENARKHE  HETRERETF
R BHRERWHREREEMERAETL R
FILEHE o AN B 5 EIE KR R 1T
o

TRETNBERR - EMEEME RS

TENBRT  AEERHDENHARE
REMARERETNSEAEZEH (AR
EMUHBEENERNAABEEMB)Z
BRRE -



41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. $REREEBEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Continued) Shis B (48)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
HK$/US$ in profit
rate before tax
B, RTER BRBE AR R
EFCRE) & GRd)
RMB'000
% AR¥T T
2016
If the RMB weakens against the US$ WARBE L ETTEE 5 15,567
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ M AREE L ETTHAE (5) (15,567)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MAREEBTLRZE 5 (1,529)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ W AR B THE (5) 1,529
2015
If the RMB weakens against the US$ WARMEHETEE 5 (93,548)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ WA RS EITAE (5) 93,548
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARBHBTRE 5 (8)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ MARBHETHE (5) 8
CREDIT RISK EERKE

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank deposits and other receivables, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

In relation to the Group's financial services business,
the Group has a credit team which is responsible for the
evaluation of customers’ credit ratings, financial background
and repayment abilities. The Group only provides credit to
customers with creditworthiness and collateral is normally
required. The risk of default in payment by these customers is
considered not significant.

AEBERERNRRIEEAIENE =TT
X5 o WMRAEENEE - IARIZEED
ETRHGNER  VALXBBEERER
Froo thoh - REEREE R ERARNIENR
RAEBEHZERARILTERK

AEENHEMCEREE(BRRE MRTE
AEEMBUFIR)MEERRIREER Y
THEEEYN  SARBREEERZEFTIA
MAREE -

HRAREEEEARREENSENE =T
ETRS - MARERMR

BRASENSRRGEED  AEEHEEE
EEBRRNEEPZEENE MBES
MERREN - AEEEREERTINEFR
HEER—RAREERR - ZFEFHN
RIERARIALTEK e
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. £RiEMEEBEERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK MENE & E g
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash REEBRNHEZFTONIES RESEEY
equivalents and available funding through various sources of WiEBNRREAEFREESES -
finances to meet its commitments.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the B RTHORITENRAEE  KEBNRE R
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual HFHRNeREaEIHBBROT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2016
Within 1to 2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 12245 2k BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T AR¥TR AR%¥TR AR%®T:R
Trade and bills payables B EMNTBEEEE 3,603,162 - - 3,603,162
Financial liabilities included &t A E th & (< 78
in other payables and NEERN
accruals G- =N ] 482,973 - - 482,973
Borrowings & 4,315,968 84,891 374,677 4,775,536
Other long-term payables Hih R HAE 1~ 708 - 88,000 18,439 106,439
8,402,103 172,891 393,116 8,968,110
2015
Within 1to2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 1224 26k #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETET AR%®ETET
Trade and bills payables g P RN FIERER 1,681,582 - - 1,681,582
Financial liabilities included 5t A E fth &~ 5008
in other payables and N ERTE AW
accruals TREE 477,656 - - 477,656
Borrowings (R 1,124,823 1,141,560 1,071,237 3,337,620
3,284,061 1,141,560 1,071,237 5,496,858
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or new debts or the
redemption of existing debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes
borrowings less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity
ratio at a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, without
limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of
capital to support its business. The net debt to equity ratios, at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

41.

tREREEAERBEKE)

EXxER

AEFBEANEENTI2ARAREASEHR
BUARBEEEZLENEE N URBERFEEN
BALL R FHER - URERRNEER

-
AzEHE -

AEBRBEBEANEHERELEARER
EHFE - RBCERRERER  A%E
ARHEXMNTRENOEE  ABREREE
R BT EXNBOBEES - F
N EEEANER  BRIGERELEE
# o

AREBABHFEA BB RETEN - &
HERSEHFERNER - BHFRBIER
FORIR & MIRITIFR « BRI IEHEan iR o

REBMRE AEFEBFEEERIL R
KT UZFEHER - AEBHEIE
EXRBEREEINRANERRFBERET K
LI AEIEEROE S - RIS BEBTRE
FAREKERARKETEI R ETS (W
FE) UBRAEEHEFSEKENER
THEER RBEHRNES FEEER
=M

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Borrowings EEN 4,694,561 3,240,740
Less: Cash and bank deposits B WEe RIRITER (3,885,683) (3,893,544)
Net debt/(cash) &%,/ (&) F8E 808,878 (652,804)
Total equity AR 11,537,672 9,865,452
Net debt to equity ratio B FRE R X 7% N/A
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

168

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

42. TEMBARNFE

AAFZ EEMBDTMEEMT

follows:
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration and registered A AEGERL R
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
il BRTEBERRE
28 -3 AR A H# B TEEHK
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREZERAERA REERARS E 100% - REER
Great China International Holdings ~ BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Ltd.
ZHERZERERD HEERRES E 100% - REEK
China Liansu Investment Limited ~ BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
PRI R ERR AR REERARS B 100% - REAER
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
sale of building materials
and interior decoration
products
BAEEBRAT Bt 13,000,000 ¢ - 100%  REFRIWHERZM
EREEM
Guangdong Liansu Technology PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd.™® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BREZHRERERAA R 2,800,000,0007% 7T - 100% BERHEZHEBEREN
Heshan Lesso Industrial PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Development Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BUBZEREREBRLQA® e 269,930,000/ T - 100% BERHEZHEBREN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd."™® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BEMRER(EZE)BRRF® hE 111,000,000/ 7T - 100% BERHEZHEBREN

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T



(Continued)

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

42. T EMEB A RS @)

Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration and registered AR FEGER LR
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
HEmRL ERTEBRRE
=% AL R i B Eail)) %N HiE i TEEK
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Guiyang) Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BEMRER(EG)BRAF® h 115,000,000 7T - 100% BUERHEEHNEEREN
Nanjing Lesso Technology PRC US$26,750,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
HRBERREEARAF FE 26,750,000 7T - 100% BUERHEENEBREN
Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) Co., PRC US$32,790,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BEmHEBCITL) BRRE i 32,790,000% 7T - 100% BUERHEEHEBREN
Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd."® PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
AEMEERARDE i AR #200,000,0007T - 100% BERHEEHNEBREN
(a) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the (a) WIEPE EEAMA—HIINEBEDE -
PRC.
(b) Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of the PRC. (b)  REREEEEMAEEDRE -
(c) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC. () REFEDEETIMA—RAERAR

The above table lists the Company's subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BEERR LRABIINARBMERRY
Ki&ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁi%)ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
EFENERID - EFRRIMFFIEADH
BARIMER  $EEEREENITE -
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. A RIBI#EMRRE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the REREEIR - BEAARQ B BERAKRHER
Company at the end of the reporting period as follows: mr
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 5,016,480 3,421,868
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 75,588 43,238
Total non-current assets EMBEVEELREE 5,092,068 3,465,106
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Loans to a subsidiary BLEPNGIE=E N = 1,446,456
Cash and bank deposits BE NBITER 147,714 15,337
Total current assets MENVEEBTE 147,714 1,461,793
CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Other payables and accruals Hi B R ERTE A 2,501 2,261
Borrowings RN 2,674,984 504,691
Total current liabilities mENREARE 2,677,485 506,952
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS nE(aE) EEFE (2,529,771) 954,841
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥EAERABAS 2,562,297 4,419,947
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBERE
Borrowings =R - 1,971,580
Net assets BEFH 2,562,297 2,448,367
EQUITY =
Share capital &4 135,344 135,686
Reserves (note) bt (k) 2,426,953 2,312,681
Total equity T 4ATE 2,562,297 2,448,367
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COMPANY (Continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43.

DA BRI R (#)

Note: Mzt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARz EEREZOT
Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange
Share valuation  fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
At E
REHE & 5, % &
17 (B i i IREB 5 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 20151 818 1,922,887 222 (215,814) 421,948 2,129,243
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENFETE - 1,777 136,046 364,476 502,299
Dividends recognised as distributions to RAERES A

owners DIREAL B - - - (318,861) (318,861)
At 31 December 2015 and M2015F 128318 &

1 January 2016 201641 H1H 1,922,887 1,999 (79,768) 467,563 2,312,681
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE@MNEFETE - 613 155,768 324,829 481,210
Shares repurchased 51 BE AR 17 (17,269) - - (10,441) (27,710)
Dividends recognised as distributions to REMERA

owners DIREIAR S - - - (339,228) (339,228)
At 31 December 2016 72016912 A31H 1,905,618 2,612 76,000 442,723 2,426,953

44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 44, #HLELFESIBEHRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 6 March 2017.

EFEEN2017F3A6 A E R K EZS R
BB RAR M -
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REYVEHE
As at 31 December 2016
72016512 831H

Details of the Group’s investment properties at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Location

B

RIER - AEBRAYE Y DT

Type Site area
bRl BEER
Sq. ft.

FAR

Lease term

LR

Group's
interest

FEEZES

Stage of
completion

TRER

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623,

Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,
Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,
Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,

Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,
Lot 1in Deposited Plan 119616 and
Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,
Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,
New South Wales

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623,

Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,
Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,
Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,

Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,
Lot 1in Deposited Plan 119616 and
Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,
Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,
New South Wales

Part of lots 23 & 24, Markham,
Concession 3, Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
Part of lots 23 & 24, Markham,
Concession 3, Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951
Steeles Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951
Steeles Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario

Australia Industrial

BN 1%

Canada Industrial

nmex I¥%

Canada Commercial
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2,320,699

2,320,699

1,994,351

1,994,351

1,750,241

1,750,241

Freehold

KAKE

Freehold

KAEHE

Freehold

KAEHE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Planning
stage

Planning
stage

IR

Yk
|Bht

Planning
stage

Yk
|Bht

&R



Group's Stage of

Location Type Site area Lease term interest  completion
i 2 £l BEER HAH FEEzER TR
Sq. ft.
FHR
West of Foshan-kaiping highway, China  Commercial 1,392,982 Leasehold 100% Planning
North of Langao Road, stage

Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

ERAHLTIEREETIE H BE 1,392,982 HEFE 100% F2IRER
BESRAR « BRBMIL

South of Longzhou West Road, China  Commercial 221,825 Leasehold 100% Planning
East of Dengdong Road, stage
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

ERAHLITIEREEETIE th B 221,825 HEXE 100% BRRR
ENAERERETRERARXA

12071 Bellegrave Avenue, United Commercial 4,755,880 Freehold 100% Planning
Jurupa Valley, California States stage
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, xH [GES 4,755,880 KARERE 100% B2IRRER

Jurupa Valley, California

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, United  Agricultural 3,347,290 Freehold 100% Planning
South side of Highway 380 States stage
West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, xH B 3,347,290 KAERE 100% B2IRER
South side of Highway 380

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

119-120, 202, 204, 1413-1421, 1423 Thailand Complex 3,469,303 Freehold 75% Planning
Tambol Bang Sao Thong, stage
Amphoe Bang Sao Thong,

Samut Prakan Province

119-120, 202, 204, 1413-1421, 1423 ZH e 3,469,303 KAKRE 75% L2RE

Tambol Bang Sao Thong,
Amphoe Bang Sao Thong,
Samut Prakan Province
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GLOSSARY
R

"Board”
=30

“BVI”
[REBHARES]

“China” or "PRC"
[
“Code”
[<rAI]

“Company” or “China Lesso”

[ARRR] e [ A B2 |

“Current Ratio”
[RENLLE |

"EBITDA"
B BB E R 27

“Gearing Ratio”

[BEREE]

“Group”
[A&EHE ]

“Guangdong Liansu Electric”

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[ERE B

the board of directors of the Company
KRREEG

the British Virgin Islands
EEEBRES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARKIE - RARETE - WFEES RPIREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ERRAI SR AR B R EVA ST R

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
REEE EEIERAR AR

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

REAEGARBA BN

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

RRAE - BIR - I8 AT AR

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
REBEBERAER BN R EENEN

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRRREM B R E

Guangdong Liansu Electric Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules
EBREBZEERERAT  EHELEMEZERENAR  WAKRRAANEA
BEALT(EER EMARA)

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules

BRI HEBEERRAT  EMELEHELZERANRGF  WAKRAHR
WEEAL(EERR EMARA)
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“Guangdong Liansu Technology”

[ & SRt 2B o

“HK$"
[T

“Hong Kong” or “HK"”
[ &% ]

“Listing Rules”

[ Em Al

“Macau”

[RF )

“Model Code”

B

“N/A"
[N/A]

"New Fortune”
E==

“pE"

[PE ]

“PP-R”
[PP-R]

“PVC”
[PVC]

“Quick Ratio”
[ZREPLL K |

“RMB”
[AR¥]

“SFO"
[7& 7 M TS P

Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

FERBMEMBREEAERLQR - RARRNEZEZEN B QR

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREOEEEE AT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H BB R R T R =

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B P& LR Al

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI RITT B R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LR AR 10FTE A E M AR E SR ETESF R ZHHIE LT

not applicable
A~ 3E A

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited * —FHRABHER RS TMALZ AR

polyethylene
Bk

polypropylene random
R HEEBRG

polyvinyl chloride
RELNE

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

MBEERTFEBRARBEENLE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

hEZEEEE - AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BEEPIESTIER S KR K
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GLOSSARY

A

“Share(s)”

[ B tn

“Shareholder(s)”
[R% 3 ]

“Shenzhen Qianhai Lesso”

"Shunde Liansu Industrial”

[NEfEE B B

“sq.m."

[ 755K

“sqf.”
[FHR]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 By

“Taiwan"

=

"

“tonne(s)

[ 14 |

“US”
[2E )

“Ussg”
=l

“Xi Xi Development”

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

AR B A I EE0.05/8 TTHI AR {7

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
ZAYNSILERES TSN

Shenzhen Qianhai Lesso Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd.*, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and wholly foreign-owned
enterprise established in the PRC

FYNAEM B EREERAR - ARRZEEZERB AT KRR KL
2N EE R

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*

BILTIEE R 2 EEAR QA

square metres

F K

square feet
FHER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBBERHABRA R

the Republic of China
RERE

a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
ERESMEN - 85,0008

the United States of America

ENRERE

US dollar, the lawful currency of US

XEZEEER—ET

Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI

[FRER ] FRBERBBRAF  —HREBERAHESTMK I ZAF]
“%" per cent.

[% ] Aot

* The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

* IR B SR SO RE (AR R ) 2 AR -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Lin Dewei

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Ms. Lan Fang

Exg

HITES
mMESSE(L/E)
TTimtm R (TTEAREL)
ERMR L
FEEIR L L
FLRERSE A

PREIRG LA
NI T
mERLE

BRERLE

FUITES
MR L

BAFATES
ISR L
TEZEE
RXFRE
BTt
P M £

BREEY
BB (L)
FEFEE
RIS
RXTFHAE

BN
R (EE)
ERER L
it E
FHEFEE
RXFHAE

REZEE
EMIERE(EE)
Emth L

it bt
FHEZFEE
s
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA
Liansu Industrial Estate

Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128

SHARE INFORMATION
Board lot size:
1,000 shares

Share issued as at 31 December 2016:
3,102,418,400 shares

Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2016:

HK$15,605 million

1 78 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & BB Y8 &£ B2 AR A T

EERE
ot S
BAEELEE

TP EE

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

FERARREZERBE

#

ER & (H4 - 528318)
Il

JIEfE [

BE) IR

BE9A T 347

BERETEEXME

BN
Seb IR B D
B T755%

B AL

B E12i83%F

EmEHR
L E -
BEBARIAARAR

BAR A58
2128

RAn &R
STEHEEL :
1,000/

2016512 A31HEBTRMHEE -
3,102,418,4000%

R20165E12831HMIE :
156.051E8 7T



DIVIDEND

Final dividend per share for the year ended 31 December 2016:
HK15 cents per ordinary share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Annual results announcement:
6 March 2017

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

- for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 16 to 19 May 2017 (both dates
inclusive)

- for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend
from 25 to 29 May 2017 (both dates inclusive)

2017 annual general meeting:
19 May 2017

Payment of 2016 proposed final dividend-:
on or around 8 June 2017

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting to
be held on 19 May 2017.

R E
HZE2016F12A3MB I FEFRARBKE -
BB 15580

5 B
FEEERE -
201743761

EEREROBEETTE
- BELERREBFASGTRE FRENE
HHE2017F58162 198 (BHEEEMX)

- T B R R B B B B20174F
5H26E29R (BIEEEMAKX)

2017 FRRBEFKE
2017958198

IRAT2016F #ER R B AR B
20176 A8 =it H T

RDBFETHERE
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

BREOBFEERDE
EEPREBLEEZRLBRAA
BE

T 2 fF RER1835%

A 1R D
17181712-1716 %

B RN 201745 A 198 BITHI201 7R ERE
AEEHER - FAEE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NCIE-ve

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

Units 2008-12, 20th Floor, The Centre
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
K&L Gates

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.lesso.com
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REEBR
iPREEE R
BB LR AET 95

FIRFL201E2008E 12F
TE ¢ (852) 2136 6185
fEH : (852) 3170 6606
FH : ir@lesso.com

% EED
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BRHNEETE

(eI
EE RS
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FETERT (M BRAF
PETERITROERAF
=HERIRT
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
include, without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words
"believe”, “intend”, “expect”, "anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”, “predict”, "is
confident”, “has confidence"” and similar expressions are also intended to represent
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts.
Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions,
expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and management of China
Lesso about the businesses, industries and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company's control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only
the views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report
only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.

AR A

AREFAAEZRR - WEEBRARFEATRRABERAR
AMER - mIEE] - [5t81) - (385 [F8E] - 3881
[Maat] -~ [H#ER ] DRIE] - [8EEL I RBRLERE I ERRA
B - IR EARNTRBMEEREREREREEL 7%
RABEPREENmSHARSIELOERNES  BR - H
P AR RIERRESE - MUFESLEE -

I EREERYFRRRNEBRRELRE  HE2EREA
B THPREEREAGEARMETZE  EPALEREIFAR
BIFTREIEG] - BEEDATER o Bt - B4R 8L B AT RE 2 AR
AR BRSRIERMEREEARZ -

FiiAEERERRGEREEEREEENARERRER
FRESRVERE: - AL —BITEERBULEAIERA - AREL
EEEARE DAATEESR - URMARERFEDEAEED
EFsBER -
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LESSO Hx¥8

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BBNERER I E B 755 F P/ 0 Z E12#83F
L (852) 2712 8405
(852) 2714 7022
L1 www.lesso.com

@ This report is printed on Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF) paper.
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